

Marshall University

Marshall Digital Scholar

0236: Fred B. Lambert Papers, 1809-1964

Digitized Manuscript Collection Materials

December 2020

MS 76 Box 8 Notebook 27 - Peyton, Dundas, etc. Copies sent to Benjamin U.Dundas c/o B. M. S., Hot Springs, S. D.

Fred Bussey Lambert

Follow this and additional works at: https://mds.marshall.edu/lambert_papers

Recommended Citation

Lambert, Fred Bussey, "MS 76 Box 8 Notebook 27 - Peyton, Dundas, etc. Copies sent to Benjamin U.Dundas c/o B. M. S., Hot Springs, S. D." (2020). *0236: Fred B. Lambert Papers, 1809-1964*. https://mds.marshall.edu/lambert_papers/428

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the Digitized Manuscript Collection Materials at Marshall Digital Scholar. It has been accepted for inclusion in 0236: Fred B. Lambert Papers, 1809-1964 by an authorized administrator of Marshall Digital Scholar. For more information, please contact zhangj@marshall.edu.

MS 76
BX 8
NBK 27

Peyton, Dundas, etc.
Copies sent
Benj. U. Dundas
c/o B. M. S.,
Hot Springs, S. D.

MS 76
BX 8
NBK 27

Francis W. Peylor

b. Sept. 26, 1852

d. July 11, 1926

m. Cora Virginia Baumgardner,
daugh. of John B. ("Fatty") and Louisa
Baumgardner, who were first
cousins, he being a son of
Jacob Baumgardner, and she
a daughter of Philip Baum-
gardner.

Their children:

1-2. John Peylor

b. April 25, 1875

d.

m. Laura Burks of
Barboursville, daughter of
and William M. E. Burks.
Azelia

Their children:

2-2. "Percy" Peylou (Percell)

b. April 14, 1877, in
Barboursville

d. June 10, 1950

m. Flossie Cummings

b. Oct. 10, 1898,
daughter of Hansford
and Chloe Adkins Cummings

Three children:

1-3. Louie Pearl Peylou

b. March 14, 1921.

m. 1. Madeleine Whitney

Two children:

1-4. Mona Peylou
10-12 yrs.

2-4. Franklin Peylou
about 8 yrs. old

m. 2. Mary Ann Brewer.

Two children:

1-5. James Francis Peylou
about 5 yrs. old.

2-5. Louie Dale Peylou
b. Aug. 27, 1949.

2-3. Dewey Percell Peyton

b. March 14, 1921, a twin
to Louie Pearl Peyton.

m. Mrs. Florence Ferguson

She has ^{two} ~~has two~~ children by her ~~for~~
first husband.

~~1-4.~~ No children by Mr.
Peyton

~~2-4.~~

3-2 Ruby Mae Peyton

b. Oct. 19, 1925

m. Eugene Coleman,

b. Feb. 5, 1925

Mr. Coleman works at
the Zenith Optical Co.

No children.

4-2. Lou Ella Peyton

b. Jan. 31, 1899

d. June 25, 1927

m. Clay Warren Mc Ginnis,

b. Sept. 25, 1872

They live at 111 Moore Road,
Guyandotte. They have four
sons and two daughters:

1-3. Georgia Frances Mc Ginnis,

b. Sept. 8, 1905.

m. George R. Powell.

They live on Depot
Street, Guyandotte, W. Va.

Two daughters and
one son:
1-4. Alice Leigh Powell

b. April 24, 1936

2-4 Sarah Virginia Powell

b. April 27, 1934.

3-4 Robert Lee Powell

b. July 1941.

~~2-3.~~

~~4-4~~
~~2-3.~~
2-3

Julia Andra Powell
b. March 15, 1907

m. Richard Ornette Dunkley,

b.

d.

Five children;

1-4. Ellajean Dunkley

b. Dec. 13, 1927

m. Benjamin Adorick

Four children;

1-5 Benjamin Adorick Jr.

b. May, 1947.

2-5. Richard Wade Dunkley

Single. He is
in the U.S. army

3-5. Judith Ann Dunkley

m. Randy Cook,
of Huntington

4-5. James Mack Dunkley

Single. About
15 years old.

3-3. Elizabeth Mc Ginnis

b. March 18, 1911

m. Frank Miro

b. Nov. 29, 1909

Three children:

1-4. Frank Warren Miro

b. Aug. 24, 1933

2-4 Nancy Lou Miro

b. Feb. 6, 1936

3-4 Teresa Miro

b. Jan. 21, 1942

4-3. Ollie Belle Mc Ginnis,

m. Ralph Peirce of
Barboursville. He is in
the navy. No children.
They are separated.

She lives with her father

5-3. Woodrow Wilson Mc Ginnis

b. Jan. 11, 1913

Single. Lives with his
father

6-3 Earl Peyton Mc Ginnis

b. Nov. 16, 1919.

m. Louise Adkins

They live in Detroit.

He works in the Compos-
ing room of the Detroit
Free Press.

Three daughters:

1-4. Sue Mc Ginnis

b. June 12, 1940.

2-4 Verma Louise Mc Ginnis

b. Feb. 7, 1944

3-4. Ollie Belle Mc Ginnis

b. Nov. 16, 1946.

5-2. Carrie Pepton

b. Nov. 7, 1882. d. About 5-6 yrs. ago.

m. Lucy Leist of Barboursville, daughter of Valentine Leist. She had previously married Warren Martin, son of Rev. Martin. One son;

1-4. Bernard Martin, now living in Huntington.

Lucy Leist was a sister of Mrs. J. N. Fannin.

6-2. Ora Pepton

b. Sept. 9, 1887. She now lives, at 621 Jackson St., East Liverpool, Ohio. She has been married several times, and has no children. Her present husband is Henry Hancock.

7-2. Earl Thomas Peplon

b. May 28, 1885, at
St. Albans, W. Va

m. Ella Mae Payne,

b. Sept. 14, 1888, dau.
of Floyd and Lidea
Mullins Payne of Boone
County. Address 1925,
Madison Avenue. He
is retired from the Ap-
palachian Electric Power
Company.

No children.

8-2. Hecvey Peplon

b. Aug. 18, 1898

d. Feb. 9, 1902.

He was choked to
death, on a peanut.

9-2 Craven Peplon

b. May 25, 1881

d. 1882

10

Eliza Peyton, sister of Thomas West Peyton III,
b. ^{New Orleans.} in d.
Daughter of Thomas West Peyton II
and Sarah O' Bowd Peyton, married
Thomas Dundas Peyton, son of
Mr. John Peyton, her first cousin.
They had eight children:

1-2 William Peyton

b. 1874 d. Sept. 14,
1927, in Spencer State
Hospital, where he was
admitted May 6, 1926, at
52 years.

2-2 Virginia ("Jennie") Peyton
m. John Bailey.

Three children:

1-3. Ruth Bailey

2-3. Alice Bailey

3-3. John Bailey.

3-2 Thomas E. Peyton, b. 1880

m. Lelia Gibson, of the
Sixteenth Street Road. She
had previously married
a Mr. Collins, by whom
she had a son, Vergil
Collins

4-2. Gertrude Peyton

She died in Charleston.
She was not married.
She died about 1924-
1925 and is buried
at Spring Hill Cemetery,
but has no individual
monument. She was a
nurse.

5-2 Ernest Peyton

b. August 1, 1911

d. Jan. 7, 1941

m. 1. Horschler,

m. 2. Marie Waggoner,
and has no children.

6-2 Charles Peyton

b. d., in
Soldier, Kentucky

m. Elona Mockery

b.
d.

7-2 Harvey Dundas Peyton
b. Nov. 9, 1894

d. April 29, 1940

m. Nora Holdren, June
16, 1919. She was
b. Jan. 19, 1898,
in Mason County. She
was a daughter of
J. H. and Frances Hol-
dren, of ~~Mason County~~.

Two children:

1-3 Thomas Harvey Peyton
b. Oct. 2, 1921, at
Gaulley Bridge, W. Va.
m. Anne Muirhead

Thompson, Dec. 27, 1944.

Two children:

Mary Frances Peyton
b. Oct. 24, 1946
Harvey Dundas Peyton
b. Sept. 2, 1949.

2-3. James Lee Peyton
b. Feb. 16, 1924,
at Huntington, W. Va.

8-2 Sarah Peyton

b.

m.

Murray.

They live in Honolulu,
Hawaiian Islands.

Francis W. Peyton

b. Sept. 26 1852 d. ~~Dec~~ July 11, 1926

m. Cora ~~W~~ Baumgardner, dau.
May 20, 1874. d. Jan. 4, 1934

of "Fatty" (John B.) Baumgardner
and Louise Baumgardner
b. May 20, 1878.

d.
dau. of Philip and
Baumgardner.

They had the following chil-
dren:

I. John Peyton d. About 1945
b. April 25, 75 d.

Worthington, Ky — m. Laura Burles, of
Barboersville

They live at
QK. — Worthington, Kentucky
(Write her) about Russell
Children: About 5.

Garnet m. Riggs
Lives there

2 sons got poisoned
on meat & d.

Franklin Peyton. Single
d. Long ago.
"Bo" Peyton, Crippled
Richard d. about 1951

1834
27
1857

II. "Percy" Peyton (Perrell)

b. April 14, 1877, in B'ville

d. June 10, 1950

~~Her~~ mother was
Elizabeth Atkins
(Chloe now lives
at Marmet, W. Va.)

m. Flossie Cummings, dau

b. Oct. 10, 1898

Hansford and ~~Chloe~~ Atkins Cummings

They have three children,

m. 1. ^{Whitney} Madeline ~~Whitney~~ ^{Pearl} Peyton (Ph.)

Two children

b. March 14, 1921

a. Mona Peyton (2034 Jefferson Ave.)

m. 2. Mary Ann Brewer

b. Franklin "

m. 2. Mary Ann Brewer

Has 4 children 2 by each

a. James Francis 5

2. ~~Pearl~~ Peyton

b. Louie Dale 3

b. ~~March 14, 1921~~

8-27-49.

Louie & Dewey
were twins

2. Dewey Perrell Peyton
b. 3-14-21

m. Mrs. Florence

Ferguson - (2 children)

She was dau. of

_____ and _____
Ferguson.

No children by
Mr. Peyton.

Phone 21231
or 35806

3. Ruby Mae Peyton
b. Oct. 19, 1922

m. Eugene Coleman
b. Feb. 5, 1925

No children,

Mr. Coleman works
at Genith Optical Co.,
City.

Address 1816,
Jefferson Ave., with
with mother.

4- One died Who?

~~II Percy Peyton~~

~~b. April 12, 1877~~

~~d. June 10, 1950~~

~~m. Flossie Cummings~~

~~III Ella Peyton~~

~~b. Jan 31, 1899 d. 6-25-1942~~

~~m. Clay Warren Ginnis~~
~~b. Sept. 25, 1872~~

111 Moore Rd
South Hughes
Guyandotte

~~Six children - 4 daughters & 2 sons~~

~~1. Georgia Frances Ginnis~~

~~b. Sept. 8, 1905~~

~~m. Geo. G. Powell~~
~~(Deport St. Guyandotte)~~

~~Two daughters b. 4-24-~~

~~Robert Lee~~

~~b. July, 1941~~

~~Alice Leigh~~

~~b. 4-24-~~

2. Julia ^{Andra} Mc Ginnis
b. 3-15-1908 ⁷ (over)
Richard Annette D.
m. Dick Dunkley
b. older

Five children:

2. Richard Wade
Single. In service

Ellagean Dunkley
b. Dec. 13, 1927
"Mummy"
m. Benj. Adorick

3 Judith Ann

m. Randy Cook of Huntington
~~This is in service~~

⁴ ~~One son~~
Benny Jr.

4. James Mack Dunkley
Single about 15

b. May 1947

Address Detroit:

14392 Robison
Detroit, Mich

3. Elizabeth Mc Ginnis
b. 3-18-1910

Look out. She
won't talk.

Phone 32268
41 or 2 y

m. Frank Miros.
(Phone) b. Nov. 29, 1909

He b.

Children - 3:

Frank Warren Miros 18

b. Aug. 24, 1938 3

Nancy ^{Low} Miros 16

b. 2-6-1936

Teresa Miros 11

b. Jan. 24, 1942

b. Jan. 21, 1942

5. ~~4.~~ Woodrow ^{Wilson} Mc Ginnis
b. Jan. 11, 1913 about 46
not married

4. ~~5.~~ Ollie Belle Mc Ginnis
m. Ralph Petrie
of Belle. He is in
the navy. No children
divorced? (Mc Ginnis now
a perfect gentleman)

Woodrow Wilson Mc Ginnis
(comes before Earl
b. Jan 11, 1913
Single

6. Earl Peyton Mc Ginnis
b. Nov. 16, 1919
m. Louise Adkins
live in Detroit.
Three daughters:

c/o composing room
Detroit Free Press

Cora Susan ^{Mc} Ginnis
b. ~~June~~ ^{June} 12 1939 1940
Verna Louise b. Feb. 7, 1941
Ollie Belle "
b. Nov. 16, 1946

All

Bernard? Martin.
Dry B. D. Martin
608-9th Ave.
Ph. 22036

IV Carrie Peyton died years ago.
b. Nov. 7, 1882, in St Albans
d. About 5-6 yrs. ago
m. Lucy Leist of
Barboursville, Both
deceased. No children
~~One~~ She had m. 1
Warren Martin, son of
Rev. Martin. One son
Bernard Martin. City.
Lucy was ^{sister} ~~daughter~~ of Mrs
J. N. Fanning.

V Ora Peyton
b. Sept 9, 1887
621 Jackson St.,
East Liverpool, Ohio
m. Harry Hancock of
Pittsburg, Her 5th husband.
No children.

(Mr. Benj. F. Hager lives at
627 S. High St.)

VI Earl Peyton (see over)

21
VI. Earl ^{Thos.} Peyton

Phone 23153

b. May 28, 1885, at Ex. Al-
bans

m. Ella ^{May} Payne Sept. 14, 1888
saw. of Floyd & Videna Mullins Payne,
of Boone Co.

Lives at 1925, Madison
Ave., Retired from Appa-
lachian Electric Power Co.

Phone 23153.

No children

Two brothers of Earl and
Percy Peyton were
all

b. Aug. 18, 1898
Feb. 9, 1902

Dewey - choked to death
at about 5, on a
peanut

Craven - b. May 25, 1881

d. as a baby. This
would be eight in the
family.

Mr. Lambert.

In answer to your question
about my father's family - They were.

William Peyton - (dead)
Charles " "
J. Ernest " "
Gertrude " "
Fleming Peyton Bailey, " "
Thomas E. Peyton (Living)
Sarah Peyton Murray " in Honolulu, Hawaii
Harvey Dundas Peyton (my father) dead -
was born, Nov. 9 - 1894 - Died April 29 - 1940 -
married June 16 - 1919 - to

(2) Nora Holdren Peyton, my mother was born
Jan. 19, 1898 in Mason Co. Her parents
(deceased)
J. D. and Maucis Holdren of Mason Co.

Thomas Harvey Peyton
(3) I was born, Oct. 2, 1921 - at Bailey Bridge, W. Va.
James Lee Peyton, born Feb. 16 - 1924 - at Huntington

John Baumgardner } Sons of Billy B. son of Fatty
Craven " }
Earl or Percy Peyton - Also gr. son

(4)

My grandmother was Eliza Peyton from New Orleans, La. as well as I remember hearing them talk about her. - She and her husband were of the same surname. Ted Peyton's father was her brother - Ora Benkring, Alice Trimble and Sally Peyton, (the teacher) were her sisters -

(5) I married Anne Muirhead Tompkins Dec 27-1944- and have two children Mary Frances Peyton, born Oct. 24-1946 Harvey Duenda Peyton - .. Sept, 17-1949-

(6) Marie Peyton, Ernest Peyton widow who lives at 1126 Adams Ave. may know more about my grandmother Peyton's family -

Sincerely -

Thomas Harvey Peyton -

(Death Record 2 p 6, says: "Harvey L. Peyton b. Nov. 9, 1904, son of Thos. L. and Eliza Peyton")

I. Eliza Peyton
m. Thos. Dundas Peyton

Children

~~I. Eliza Peyton~~
~~m. Thos. Dundas Peyton~~
~~Son of Dr. John Peyton~~

2. Virginia Peyton (m. ~~Chas. Rockwell~~)
m. Jas. Bailey.
Lived at Pittsburg.
children - Alice, Ruth,
Alice, John.
3. Thos. E. Peyton
m. Mrs. Lelia Gibson
Lives at 320-31st St.
She has 1 son Virgil
Gertrude Gibson Lived
4. ~~Alice~~ Gertrude
Single. Died in Charleston about
Lived in City (1924)

Sister of Peyton's
Jas. Ernest (Lizzie)
mother, Eliza

No. See monument
in Spring Hill
buried "

5. Ernest Peyton - City
b. Aug. 17 1911, d. Jan 7, 41
no children
he m. as 2nd wife, Marie Waggoner
6. Charles Peyton - Buried
1952 41
1911 m. Godfrey Horachler, in Kentucky
a German. no. ch.
came from Cin
annali.
7. Harvey Peyton Gauley
m. Nora Holden
Bridge. After return
8. Sarah Peyton
m. ~~Tom~~
Lives in

Tom works on P.O. at Skidmore. She lives at St. Albans
2 children - Jim & Tom

24
By Earl Peyton, ^{Madison}
Carpenter Contractor in
Huntington Bn. 23153

Eliza Peyton, daughter of Captain
Thomas West Peyton II, and Sarah
O'Dowd Peyton, married
Thomas Dundas Peyton, son of
Mr. John Peyton, her first cousin.
They had eight children:

1 Eliza Peyton

b.

d.

m. Thomas Dundas Peyton,
son of Mr. John Peyton, her
first cousin.

Their children:

(1) William Peyton

b.

1874 d. Sept. 14, 1927

m.

No issue, (He died
in Spencer State Hospital)

Admitted to Spencer State
Hospital, May 6, 1926, at 82
hence b. 1874.

(2) Virginia ("Jennie") Peyton
 b. d.
 m.

(3.) Thomas E. Peyton

b.

1880 ~~d~~

b-1880

m. Mrs. Lela ~~Collins Gibson~~ ^{Gibson}
 April 19, 1916
 widow of Collins.

She was born Lela Gibson
 of the Sixteenth Street Road.

They have no children, but

she had one ^{son} daughter,
 by her first marriage.

This daughter is deceased.

(4.) Gertrude Peyton

b.

d.

She was a nurse, and died in Charleston, W. Va., and was buried, at Spring Hill Cemetery. There is a family monument, but no records.

(5.) Ernest Peyton

b. Aug. 17, 1911

d. Jan. 7, 1941

m. 1

m. 2. Marie Waggoner

No children, by either wife

(6) Charles Peyton

b. d.
in Soldier Ky.

m. ~~Mr.~~ Elora Mockery,
b. d.

(7) Harvey D. Peyton d.
b. m. Nora Holden, dau.
of

She lives at St. Albans, Vt.
and has two children

(1) Thomas Peyton

b.

He works in the
Post office, at St.
Albans. I wrote him.

5.

2. James Peyton

(8) Sarah Peyton

b.

m.

Lives in the State of
Hawaiian Islands, at Honolulu.

Francis W. Peyton

b.

d.

m. Cora Baumgardner,

May 20, 1874, Dau. of

"Fatty" John B. Baumgardner
and Louisa Baumgardner,
first cousins, the son of
Jacob Baumgardner, and
the dau. of Philip Baum-
gardner, brothers.

They had the following

Children

A sister
Cora
Wayton, O.

I. John W. Peyton
decd. about 1946
b. d.

Phone 6051

m. Laura Burkes of
Barboursville, ^{Jan 11, 1884} They did
live at Worthington, Ky.

+ Mabel

1. Richard at 14

1. Mabel

Children:

1. Garnet Peyton

m. Melvin Riggs

~~2. Cora~~

2. Richard

3. Garrett

4. Garnett

5. Franklin

2. Franklin Peyton, Single
Single. Crippled

II. Percy Peyton

2 m. gives a
different wife
was he m. 2?

b. April 12, 1877

d. June 10, 1950

m. Flossie Cummings,
b. Oct. 10, 1898

daug. of Hansford and
Chloe Adkins Cummings,
who is still living at
Marmet, W. Va. Her mother
was Elizabeth Adkins

They have three children:

1. Louie Pearl Peyton
b. March 14, 1921

m. 1. Madeline Whitney
Two children:

a. Mona Peyton,
2034, Jefferson
Ave.

b. Franklin Peyton

m. 2. Mary Ann Browder
Two children:

a. James Francis Peyton
b. July 30, 1947

b. Lona Dale Peyton
b. Aug. 27, 1948

2. Lervey Percell Pylon
b. March 14, 1921

m. Mrs. Florence Ferguson
She had two children by first
marriage a.

b.

3. Ruby May Pylon
b. Oct. 19, 1922

m. Eugene Coleman
b. Feb. 5, 1925,
No children.

Mr. Coleman works
at the Zenith Optical Co.
in Huntington They
live at 1816, Jefferson
Avenue, with
mother.

32
III. Lou Ella Pylon

b. Jan~~y~~ 31, 1879

d. June 25, 1927

m. Clay Warren McGinnis

b. Sept. 25, 1872

They live at 111 Moore Road,
S. High St., Guyandotte.
Phone 7437

They have six children:

1. Georgia Frances McGinnis

b. Sept. 8, 1905

m. Geo. G. Powell,
of Depot St. Guyandotte.

Two daughters:

a. Alice Leigh McGinnis

b. April 24, 1926

b. Sarah V. McGinnis

b. April 27, 1924

C. Robert Lee McGinnis

b. July 11941

d. Julia Andrea McGinnis

b. 3-15-1907

m. Richard Arnette Dunk

lee

Five children:

By Earl Peyton
1925 - Madison

Mr. John Peyton
Had three children:
Francis W. Peyton

Thomas Lundas ~~of Judge~~

~~of~~
Lived about 5th St., on
Adams Ave. See deed
a sister who went
west — m. here or in West.
Both died. No children

See the old Bible owned
by Harvey Peyton of St. Albans

Tom and Frank Peyton

Francis W. Peyton lived
1912, Madison Ave. &
elsewhere, but this is only
one he owned here.

John Thornburg Peyton

b. 3-2-1897 / at Cattsburg,

m. Bertha Mae Ullman,

b. Jan. 8, 1899

da. of James Henry Ullman, and

Catherine Woodrum ~~the~~, two

↑ (Her eldest bro. John Woodrum's
children; has Furniture Store ^{at} ~~Elk~~ ^{Charleston}

Thornburg wither Peyton,

b.

d.

John Thomas Peyton

b. Feb. 6, 1923, in

Kentucky.

m. Joan White, da. of

James Nolan and ~~White~~ White
of Lee St., Barboursville.
One son;

Ph. 2696

Census of 1850?
Peytons, 311, 397
400, 405, 417, 418
445, 461, 371.

John Thomas Peyton

b. May 10, 1949.

Ted Peyton d. Sept. 19, 1949.

m. Christine Lingus,

b. Sept. 3, 1916.

da. of Melvin C. and

Eva ^{Marshall} Parcell, of Williamson,

W. Va. m. Oct. 11, 1947, at

Williamson. W. Va. 1st. Meth. Ch.

Mrs. Cora Williamson Ph.

m. 2 Raymond B.
Hammond, Chem E
b. Nov. 1, 1920

36
Capt. Robert Edwin Peyton - Address?
has 2 children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton

b. Oct. 19, 1933, at

Wm. & Mary College Single
2. Mary ——— Peyton Williamsburg Va

b.

Both attending college.

Albert Hovey Peyton has
Two daughters:

1. Virginia Tyler Peyton,

b. 5-19-192

m. Chambers.

No children.

2. Sarah West Peyton,

b.

m. Leslie Smith, killed
in an explosion of a
jet plane, of which he
was a pilot, at Dayton, O.
No ch.

m. 2 ——— in Texas
No children. ——— San Antonio

James Ernest Peyton

1884 Jan 8
to
m. Marie Waggoner, Peyton
Son of Thos. Peyton
James & Mauda ~~Waggoner~~ Lizzie Peyton
of Coal River
above St. Albans. #
no children

Thos. E. Peyton

m. Mrs. Lela Collins
nee Gibson of 16th
St. Road.

Bros
Will Peyton
m.

Tom E.

See Earl — Charles m. — Mockaby
Peyton, Madison of Soldier Ky,
Ave. 18th W. Ernest (J.E.)
m.

Harvey died
m. Nora Holden
2 ch.
Tom
Jim

E. Ora Peyton
m. Henry Benhring
(J. W. Peyton family)

23150 -

World War I
overseas.

Special James Lyle Peyton
Agent Dept. C. & O. b. 3-12-1894
m. Marguerite West
Aug. 11, 1917. Son of Kirby and
Fannie Kirby, dau.
of Kirby of Mal
Colm Springs

(Henry Peyton Sr.
descendant)

Gr. son of Archibald
Peyton, & Susan Howell

J. L. Peyton
has a bro. of
Homer E. Peyton
of State Hosp
(Manager)

Children: Son

J. L. Jr. - b. 10-3-18
m. Marian J. ...

37824 - Didn't answer

35-811 - Louie Pearl Pylon - Twin
| b. 3-14-1921 of Lewy.
son of "Percy" m. Mary Ann Brewer,
b. Dec. 6, 1924,
daughter of Forest H. Brewer
of Ashland, O., m.
Maud Carver ^{over} of Wayne
Co., daughter of Robert
Carver, and Mary
Compton Carver.
Robert C. is living
at 1204 - W. 5th
Ave.

4 children:

Imona Clotaine Pylon
b. Aug. 7, 1939

II Bernard Franklin Peyton
b. Oct. 10, 1941

III, James Francis
b. July 30, 1947

IV. Louise Dale Peyton
b. Aug. 27, 1945.

Percy Peyton, dcd. 1816 Jefferson Ave.

b.

^{g.}
m. Glessie Cummings,
daughter of

b.

Lives at 1816 Jefferson Ave.

(Phone 21231 in
name of her son-in-law,
W. G. Coleman)

Phone 21231 - Percy Peyton, de'd,
1826 Jefferson
Gr. son of

b. 4-11-1897.
d. 6-10-1950
m. Flossie Cumming
b. Oct. 10, 1898.

(On Bays:
Mrs. Charles Miller
Cor. 5th St. & 9th
Ave)
Son of Franklin Peyton
Francis W. Peyton & wife
and Cora Baumgardner
da. of Fattie and Louise
Baumgardner. (For Births
call 23153 - Ella Peyton
wife of Earl Peyton.

Fattie &
Louise (Baumg.)
Baumgardner, dau.
of Philip B.

Percy & wife have

3 ch.

1 & 2, Twin boys

b. 3-14-1921

Francis W. Peyton

m. Cora Baumgardner
5-20-1874

Louise & Pearl -
Dewey Percell

Ella O. Peyton

m. Henry H. Benhring
3-26-84

Louise

m. Mary Ann Brown
b.

4 children

See above

Ann W. Peyton

m. Charles H. Ricketts Dewey P.
July 16, 1885

Kerby S. Peyton

m. Fanny Kirby
3-7-84

m. Florence
Ferguson, dau

No children

She had 2 ch.

3 Ruby Peyton

b. Oct. 19, 1922

m. Eugene Coleman

b. Feb. ⁵ 1925

No children

Percy Peyton's bro. & sisters

1. John Peyton, de'd.

m. Laura Burks of

B'ville. - Worthing
ton Ky.

2 children living

1 dau - Garnet

1 son - Franklin
Single, at

Garnet

m.

Riggs

~~2. Kirt~~

2. Percy

3. Ella Peyton (de'd.?)

m. Clay Mc Ginnis
Live at Guyandotte
on S. W. ...

5 children:

Georgia McGinnis
m. G. G. Powell
Phone

Julia Peyton
m. Dunkley
Detroit

~~Drab~~
Allie Belle Peyton
m. Perry
of Bille.
Guyandotte
Phone

Elizabeth P.
b. 3-18-1910
m. Frank Mirros
b. 11-28-1909
14th & 11th Ave
6
Phone 32268

Percy Peyton
Bro.
Son of ~~Dr.~~ John
Peyton (Mrs. G.
Hendrix 3 ch
G. Powell, Guyandotte
Phone 7437
Sister of Mrs.

Earl Peyton
m. Louise Adkins
Detroit?

Frank Warren, ^{Mirros Jr.} Son of Mrs Woodrow Mc G.
Elizabeth Mirros Vingle
1 b. Aug. 24, 33
College Student in N.C.
2 b. Nancy Lou
b. 2-6-1936.
3 d. Theresa E.C.

~~4. Clara~~
4. Carrie Peyton, (Call Mrs. Fannin.
m. Lucy Leist of
Biville
Both decid
Ch. - none.

5. Ora Peyton (Dan. F. Francis & Cora
m. Hancock
of ~~Pittsburg~~ - Liver
pool, Ohio - 621
Jackson St.
No children.

all,

25971 - Mrs. Pearle M. Peyton,
b. Sept. 24/1883
m. John Bernard
Peyton of Augusta
Co., Va.
b. June 30, 1883
d. Jan 19, 1919
No ch.
He was son of Col
John Bernard Peyton
of Staunton Va

45
Col. John B. Peyton,
m. Ella Howard of
Richmond, Va.

Mrs. Pearl L. was
b. Pearl L. Maupin, dau.
of Socrates Addison Maupin
b. at Barboursville
b. June 26, 1857.

Son of Mr. Henry Bascom
Maupin and Lucinda Smith
Maupin (She was 2nd
wife) m. Holderby
One dau. Lucy?
buried in Maupin
Cemetery.

Mr. M. gave deed to
Bethesda Church. He
was b.
d.

Call again at 1722 - 3rd Ave.
Bring down Hist. of
Big Sandy Valley. This woman
was born at Catlettsburg.

44675- Tyler Lewis Peyton, (Colored)
1757-10th Ave. b. April 14, 1890.
Now ^{near} 18th St. Son of Charles Peyton,
and Annie Peyton,

b.

d. about 3 wks
after I was born.
Chas. P. worked on the
C. & O. R.R. He came here
before I was born.

My gr. father was
Tyler Peyton a slave
of the Hurdases of
Charlottesville, Va.

My gr. mother was
Fanny Peyton who came
to B'ville after the Civil
War.

20179 - C.A. Peyton. No ans.
on Vernon L. Peyton

44290 - W.^m ^{esaway} Peyton 3619.
Crane Ave. - Gr. son of
K. Peyton.

23222 - W.P. Peyton, No ans.
729 - 3rd Ave. rear.

All in Phone book here.

Thos. West Peyton

M. Mary J Hovey
Oct. 7, 1890.

Marriages Cahell Co.

Percy Peyton
m. Eva Keene
1905 (2-213)

John B. Peyton Jr.
m. Pearl D. Maupin
1905 (2-213)

Thos. E. Peyton 36 b. 1880.
m. Lela Gibson 35
4-19-1916 (3-95)
b. 1881.

Ora Peyton 7
m. Harry Hancock,
1929 (4-253)

Col Albert H. Thornburg.
460 Grand View Ave
San Antonio, Tex

Robert Thornburg Peyton ^{See Mrs}
m. Slaughter
now in Germany.

C. A. Peyton - Lunch room 20179

25592

Earl C. Peyton (Sam & K) family 3968

23776

Jr. L. Peyton 23150
(Call above again. He
was raised at Millton
Gr. son of Arch & son of
Kirby.

Jas O. Peyton — 37824
Son of Alex

Payton - By Mrs Slaughter.

1. Date of death of Ted Payton's
first wife. Gay Vaughan, d. Oct. 46?
b. Where was she from? of
Nicholas County dau of
Mr & Mrs. Arthur Loving
Vaughn
Buried by Klengel-Carpenter

2. Col. Albert ^{Hovey} ~~Tyler~~ Payton ^{Edgar} born
b. 3-17-1893 ⁵⁰⁶
Rockford ⁵⁰⁶ Grand View Place
San Antonio, Zone 9
1. ^{"Betty"} ~~Lingard~~ Tyler Payton
b. 5-19-1920
M. Earl Chambers
no ch.

2. Sarah West Payton
b. — Texas, San Antonio
b. 8-25-23
m. 1. Leslie Smith, a
jet. Killed after
war no ch. Cullen
now in service m. 2. Joseph Niel
in Japan no ch.

John Thornburg Peyton.

b. March 2, 1897

m. Bertha Ullman.

Children

John Thos. Peyton

b. Feb. 6, 1952

3. ^{Col.} ~~Capt.~~ Robert Edwin Peyton
b. Dec. 24, 1901

Now in Germany. Where?

m. Ruth Austin, dau. of?
of Iowa Date —

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton
b. Oct. 19, 1933

Not m.
In school at Wm & Mary
Children?

Now living at?

Children
2. Mary Helen b. Aug. 30, 1936

Mr. John Peyton

m. ?

Children:

Thos. Dundas Peyton
d. in Huntington
about? 1907

J. W. Peyton II, her + ^{m. Ediza Peyton, dau. of} st cousin
Children — 8?

Mr. John Peyton

Jessie Peyton -
m. Rickells
no ch

A son brother:

Francis W. Peyton

b.

d.

m. Cora Baum-
gardner?

Children?

Thomas Dundas of Fudge Creek

b.

d.

m. Martha Turley

b.

d.

Two children:

1. Virginia Dundas

b.

d.

m. Chas Meyer

2. Wm. Dundas.

What Aunt of Ted Peyton (Jennie
m. Charley Rickells?
Children?

NEWSPAPER CLIPPING, Oct. 7, 1949.

Why Mrs. Sara Matilda O'Dowd Peyton and her six children left New Orleans in the Fall of 1863 and came to Cabell County I do not know. There is abundant evidence that she did, this including documents left by her grandson, Thomas Wrst Peyton IV. city attorney of Huntington, who died unexpectedly a short time ago. Among these documents is a pass through the Confederate lines, issued October 3, 1863. Another is a receipted bill, dated New Orleans October 12, 1863, for \$25 for passage for Mrs.Peyton and six children on the steamer Atlantic. There is also a bill of lading for a river consignment sent by Mrs.Peyton to D.A.Wright, Guyandotte, Va. In understand this merchandise never reached its destination Mrs.Peyton, widow of T.W.Peyton II got to Cabell County safely and established a home at Barboursville. Her son, T.W.Peyton III graduated at 14 from Marshall College, and is said to have been the youngest boy ever to get a diploma from the school.

NEWSPAPER CLIPPING, 9/22/49.

Funeral services for Thomas West Peyton IV. 58, of the Emmons Apartments, a prominent member of the legal profession in the state, and Huntington's city attorney, have been arranged tentatively for 2 P.M. Thursday at Johnson Memorial Methodist church, prior to burial in Spring Hill cemetery. Mr. Peyton died in a Huntington Hospital shortly after 7 P.M. Yesterday after suffering a cerebral hemorrhage earlier in a Court Room of the Cabell County Court House. He was born in Huntington August 1, 1891, a son of the late Thomas W. and Mary T. Hovey Peyton. Mr. Peyton died less than two hours after he was stricken in Domestic Relations Court where he had been pleading a contested case before Judge J. Frank ~~xxx~~ Eaton. After a recess in the case had been granted, Mr. Peyton, Judge Eaton, and Maxwell W. Flesher, opposing attorney, were discussing a point of law, when the city attorney slumped in his chair.

Two physicians giving testimony in another court room were summoned, and after receiving assistance Mr. Peyton was taken to a hospital in an ambulance. Death occurred at 7:05 P.M. The attorney's widow, Mrs. Christine Dingess Peyton and his associate, William E. Parsons, were at the bedside.

Mr. Peyton, a descendant of a military line that dates back to the war of 1812 had been actively associated with an army career ~~xxx~~ since May, 1917, when he enlisted in the First Officer's Training Camp at Fort Benjamin Harrison. He received a commission as first lieutenant three months later. He later served as assistant to ~~the~~ the Adjutant at Camp Sherman, Ohio. and was sent overseas in August 1918, until the armistice was signed while he was at the front. A

54
Barboursville; Colonel Robert E. Peyton, Medical Corps USA., of
Fort Sam Houston, Tex., and an aunt, Mrs. C.A. Slaughter, of Barbours
ville.

The body is at the Klingel-Carpenter Mortuary.

57

Lieutenant-Colonel in the U.S. Army Reserve Infantry, his father, grand-father, and great grand-father also held commissions in the army. The latter, Thomas West Peyton, served as a Captain in the war of 1812. Captain Thomas W. Peyton II, the grand father, was a Captain in the Confederate army, and his father, Captain Thomas W. Peyton III was a ranking officer in the West Virginia National Guard.

As a civilian, Mr. Peyton's law interests began at Morris-Harvey College, at Barboursville, which he attended for three years before transferring to West Virginia University for his senior year. He studied law in his father's law office and was admitted to the Cabell County bar on April 6, 1915.

The many outstanding posts he held included that of president of the Huntington Kiwanis club, 1931, president of the Cabell County Bar Association 1931. Had been president of the Huntington Chapter of the Reserve Officers Association and president of the West Virginia Department of the Reserve Officers Association. He had been in charge of the activities of the Huntington Army Advisory Board.

In the legal profession, Attorney Peyton became prominent as a lawyer in Court room activities in Cabell, as well as near by counties and the county seats of Putnam and Lincoln Counties, which are a part of the judicial circuit which includes Cabell.

On May 15, 1946, he was appointed a member of the judicial council of the State of West Virginia by Governor Clarence Meadows, a position he held at the time of his death.

Surviving are the widow, Mrs. Christine Dingess Peyton, three brothers, Colonel Albert H. Peyton, USA. (Infantry), retired, of

Funeral services for Mrs. Agnes Dundas Sedinger, 92 years old, who died Wednesday afternoon at her home, 220 Bridge Street, Guyandotte, after a short illness of pneumonia were held at the First Guyandotte Baptist church at 3 o'clock this afternoon, with Dr. M. L. Wood, pastor of the Fifth Avenue Baptist church, assisted by Rev. Arthur Hank, officiating. Burial was in Highland Cemetery. The body lay in state at the church this afternoon until the hour of the funeral.

Active pall bearers were her grandsons, Lawrence, Howard, James L., John W., , and William H. Sedinger and William ^{Reiton} ~~Belton~~. Honorary pall bearers will be H. E. Love, C. M. Love, Charles R. Wilson, H. C. Everett, James Murphy, Charles Carroll, William Robinson, Fred A. Arabald, William Kirby, John C. Hennen, Dr. Thomas Dugan, Dr. Don Weider, W. S. Vinson and G. A. Northcott.

She is survived by two sons, James D. Sedinger, Jr., of Bridge Street, and S. J. Sedinger, of Indianapolis; a daughter, Mrs. Agnes D. Reiton, at home, and the following grandchildren, besides the pall bearers:

Loren H. Sedinger, of Logan; Mrs. M. W. Persun, of Huntington, S. D. Sedinger, of Sweet Ridge, Va.; Mrs. W. A. Johnston, of Forest River, N. D., Miss Agnes E. Sedinger of this city, and Miss Mary Sedinger, of Indianapolis.

Funeral services for Mrs. Agnes Dundas Sedinger, 92 years old, who died Wednesday afternoon at her home, 220 Bridge Street, Guyandotte, after a short illness of pneumonia were held at the First Guyandotte Baptist church at 3 o'clock this afternoon, with Dr. M. L. Wood, pastor of the Fifth Avenue Baptist church, assisted by Rev. Arthur Hank, officiating. Burial was in Highland Cemetery. The body lay in state at the church this afternoon until the hour of the funeral.

Active pall bearers were her grandsons, Lawrence, Howard, James L., John W., , and William H. Sedinger and William ^{Reiton} ~~Belton~~. Honorary pall bearers will be H. E. Love, C. M. Love, Charles R. Wilson, H. C. Everett, James Murphy, Charles Carroll, William Robinson, Fred A. Arabald, William Kirby, John C. Hennen, Dr. Thomas Dugan, Dr. Don Weider, W. S. Vinson and G. A. Northcott.

She is survived by two sons, James D. Sedinger, Jr., of Bridge Street, and S. J. Sedinger, of Indianapolis; a daughter, Mrs. Agnes D. Reiton, at home, and the following grandchildren, besides the pall bearers:

Loren H. Sedinger, of Logan; Mrs. M. W. Persun, of Huntington, S. D. Sedinger, of Sweet Ridge, Va.; Mrs. W. A. Johnston, of Firest River, N. D., Miss Agnes E. Sedinger of this city, and Miss Mary Sedinger, of Indianapolis.

PEYTON.

This is one of the oldest of the Norman Conquest families in England, the name being of the generation after the conquest, but the family tracing to Guillaume de Malet, Sien de Montfort, whose name appears fourth on the list of Battle Abbey. He was a second cousin of the Conqueror, being the son of Nicholas de Baskerville, whose wife was a niece of the Dutchess Gimora. William de Malet was granted forty estates, as appears in Doomsday Book, and was made Governor of York, which he successfully defended during the first uprising against William. His second son, William, inherited Peyton Hall, in Suffolk, one of the confiscated estates, and, and as was the custom of the time, took the name of his estate, surnames as we know them, not having yet come into existence. The line as follows, is from Burke:

1. Sir William de Peyton,
2. Sir Reginald de Peyton,
3. Sir John de Peyton,
4. Sir Nigel de Peyton,
5. Sir John de Peyton,
6. Sir John de Peyton,
7. Sir John de Peyton, living in 1242; married Clemence.
8. Sir John de Peyton, crusader; married Mathilda de Beurris.
9. Sir John de Peyton, granted Stoke-Weyland and Boxford in 1298; M.P. in first Parliament, when two knights from each shire sat with the Lords, 1299-1300; died 1318.

10. Sir Robert de Peyton, called Chevalier; married Joan de Marny, of the noble family of Essex; died 1351.
11. Sir John de Peyton, married Margaret de Gemon, daughter and co-heiress of Sir John de Gemon dext^r C.K., Lees; Co. Essex; died 1394.
12. Sir John de Peyton, heir to Peyton Hall, but not to his mother's estate, as he pre-deceased her; married Joan, daughter and heiress of Sir Hammon Sutton, of Wixoe, Suffolk; died 1404.
13. Sir John de Peyton, born 1390; married in 1407 to Grace Burgoyne, of Drayton, Cambridge; died 1416.
14. Sir Thomas de Peyton, born 1416; died 1484; called "of Isleham", which estate he got from his first wife, Margaret Bernard; married, second, Margaret, daughter of, Sir Hugh Francis of Gifford Hall, Suffolk.
15. Francis Peyton, third child, son of the second wife; married Elizabeth, daughter of Reginald Brook, Esq.
16. Christopher Peyton, married Jane, daughter of Thomes Mallory.
17. Thomas Peyton, eldest son; married Lady Cecelia Bourcier, daughter of the Earl of Bath, and descended from Edward III. He was Customer of Plymouth and M.P. for Dunwich in 1557. His son, Sir Henry Peyton, knighted by Prince Henry, esdest son of James I in whose retinue he was, married Lady Mary, daughter of the

Duke of Somerset and died childless "overseas" according to his "nephew and executor, Sir John Peyton, next of kin"; his will was probated Feb. 20, 1624. He was a member of the Virginia Company, but there is nothing to show he ever came to America. He belonged to the Merchant Taylors Guild, as did both Prince Henry and King James. His will leaves a sum of money to the children of his brother, Thomas, and makes him Executor, but Thomas died first, and Sir John, his son and heir, acted as Executor. Another brother, Robert's son was the first to come to America. The Winstmoreland Company, branch of the family, bears arms granted to this Sir Henry when he was knighted, permission to bear the ancient arms with a "difference", to show cadency, being granted by Sir Edward Peyton, of Isleham, head of the elder branch. The "difference" consists of a "bordure erm", a band of heraldic ermine to show royal descent, and "is a mullet argent in the third quarter", a silver star to show descent from a third son, , that is from Francis (No. 15) third son of Sir Thomas.

18. Robert Peyton, son of Sir Thomas and Lady Cecelia Peyton.
19. John(i) Peyton married Ellen Packington (or Parkington, in England, and came to Virginia in 1622, ~~xxx~~ bringing his wife and two small sons, Henry and Valentine, with him. He was baptized at St. James Bury Apr. 11, 1596. He settled at Aquia on the Potomac, then in

Westmoreland Co. where he had a large tract of land, and died early.

20. Henry 2 Peyton, of Acquia, married Ellen, and and also had sons, Henry and Valentine. He died in 1659

21. Henry 3 Peyton of Acquia, married Anne _____

In his time, Westmorland Co. was divided, and his estate was in the new county of Stafford.

22. Valentine 4 Peyton, born 1688 and died 1751. He married Frances, daughter of Col. Thomas Harrison, of Chappawamsic. Valentine was Justice of Prince William Co. in 1743; Sheriff in 1749; Burgess in 1736, '38 and '40; vestryman (there a civil office) of Overwharter Parish in 1749. In his time, Stafford was divided and Acquia was in the new County of Prince William. The dates of his birth and death are from a foot-note in the Colonial Dame edition of Washington's Diary.

23. Craven 5 Peyton, third child and second son, removed early to Loudonn Co., where his father owned large tracts of land, some time prior to 1760. His next younger brother, Col. Francis Peyton, of the Revolution, going with him. Craven Peyton was, from the first, a prominent citizen of Loudonn, and was probably a lawyer, as he was made Executor of many wills, recorded in Leesburg. He married before 1760, Anne, only daughter of William West, of Loudonn Co. as appears from William's will, made in 1769, in which he names

four children of his daughter, Anne Peyton and makes "my son-in-law Craven Peyton", one of his executors. Craven Peyton's own will was made Oct. 13, 1780, and proved Sept. 10, 1781; it names his wife Anne, to whom he left the use of all his real estate, real and personal, ~~it~~ during her widowhood; a son William; a daughter Margaret: a son, Francis, to whom he left 600 acres of land in Kentucky, near Boonsborough, a negro man, a feather-bed, bolster and Pillows, bed stead and cord, two cows, calves, six head of sheep & piggess and my surveyor's instruments"; a son, Craven; a son Valentine, and a daughter Anne who got land on the Big Canaway. His sons, Craven & Valentine, also got Kentucky land. His widow, his son William, and his brother Frances were made executors. From this, and other wills on file in Leesburg, it appears that Craven and Anne had married prior to 1760, William being of age in Sept. 1781, that in 1769 they had four living children; in 1775, five; and in 1781, six. In 1805 Thomas West Peyton, son of their son Francis, witnessed the will of Ann Peyton in Alexandria, probably his grandmother and Craven's widow. Craven was Justice of Loudoun~~ance~~ County in 1770; vestryman of Shellbourne Parish 1771-1776; had five sons in the Revolution. His elder sister, Eleanor, was the wife of Col. Levin Powell, of the Revolution.

24. ~~Col. Francis West~~ Peyton, born as early as 1766, and possibly a little earlier; third child, married Sarah West more than probably his mother's cousin,

daughter of John West, who had a daughter, Sarah, otherwise, unaccounted for. The family believe she was of French extraction, and John West's wife was a Colville. Sarah had heavy, black hair and dark eyes, was little and very lovely. Members of the family in California, have her picture. They had ten children. Col. Francis is frequently mentioned in the records of Alexandria, where he was living in 1789 and a prominent citizen. He was Justice in 1790; a merchant in the same year under the name of Francis Peyton & Co.; a patron of the library established not long after the Revolution, and long a Vestryman of Christ church. His home was at the head of King St. where the high school building now stands, but then on the edge of town. It was a handsome pillared house with one-story flanking wings and was called Peyton Grove. Mrs. Powell remembered it very well as it stood until the late 1880s. His wife's name first appears on a grantor deed in 1789, but he had then been some years married, as his son witnessed a will in 1805. He died in 1836, his wife surviving him. He owned 1800 acres of land in Fayette Co., Ky. in 1789, when he sold 600 acres of it. as the Fairfax County record shows. It is possible that he was the Francis Peyton of Prince William Co., appointed a paymaster of the militia, with the rank of Colonel; but this does not seem likely, as he was barely of age at the time, in the early months of the Revolution. At any rate, he is always Col. Francis Peyton on the Alexandria records, and there is no record of other military service.

25. Capt. Thomas West Peyton, of age in 1805, when he witnessed the Will of Ann Peyton, probably his grandmother, was undoubtedly named for his Great Uncle, Thomas West, who mentioned his nephew, Francis Peyton, in his Will and who was wounded in action and died Jan.13, 1777. Thomas West Peyton married Sophia Matilda Dundas, daughter of John and Agnes (Hepburn) Dundas in the old Presbyterian church in Alexandria in 1811. The city was then part of the District of Columbia, and he served in the District Militia, as a Captain in the War of 1812. He was Justice of Alexandria, in 1814, and one of the first vestry of St. Paul's in Jan. 1810. He died at sea in 1819, returning from Cuba, where he had been living for some months. The family believe he occupied some official position there, but the Government had no representative there then, nor for many years after. They had two daughters: Rose, who died in infancy; and Virginia, who married a Mr. Watson and lived in New Orleans and three sons: Dr. John, Craven, and Thomas West. His portrait was painted ~~xx~~ by St. Memin.
26. Capt. Thomas West Peyton, youngest child, was born in Cuba, in 1819. In 1860, he was living in New Orleans, where he held a responsible position in the Customs House; he twice offered his resignation there, but it was not accepted till August, 1861, when he was commissioned First Lieutenant in the Confederate Army. He was wounded, and his left arm amputated; but on his recovery went back into service, and was Com-

missioned Captain; again wounded and taken prisoner at Stoney River (Murfreesboro, Tenn.) Dec.31,1862, but died in Feb. 1863. On June 29, 1848, he was appointed by Gov. Isaac Johnson as Quartermaster of the 41st Militia, of Louisiana, and family tradition says that he served in "Polk's 50,000" in the Mexican war, but it is not of record. He married in New Orleans in 1850, Sarah O'Dowd, an Irish-born Roman Catholic girl, then only seventeen. They had six children, the youngest born on the day her father was captured.

27. Capt. Thomas West 9 Peyton, fifth child and only son, was born in 1860, in Barboursville, W.Va. (then Cabell Court House, Va.) where his parents had gone on a visit to his father's mother. After the civil war was over Mrs.Peyton returned to West Virginia, and the children were reared at Barboursville. Capt. Peyton was a lawyer of prominence and held various political offices. He married Mary Thornburg Hovey , daughter of Capt. William Marshall Hovey, of the Union army on Oct. 7, 1890, and they lived at Huntington, W.Va. 'till the death of his wife, in 1902, when he returned to Barboursville for a time. Later, they lived for a year in New Mexico, but finally returned to Huntington, where Capt.Peyton died in 1912.. He was long an Officer in the West Virginia National Guard.

DUNDAS FROM HUGH CAPET.

1. Hugh Capet, first King of France, married Adela, died 996.
2. Robert, the Pious, married second, Constance
3. Henry I, of France, married Anne, of Russia.
4. Hugh, younger son, married Adela, of Vermandois, and was made Count of Vermandois in her right. She was the daughter and heiress of Herbert IV, of Vermandois, and descended from Henry, 3rd Count of Vermandois, and his wife Edgiva, daughter of Edward, the Elder of England and widow of Charles, the Simple.
5. Lady Isabelle de Vermandois, third daughter, married Robert de Beaumont, who fought at Hastings, and was made Earl of Leicester in 1103 and died 1118. Lady Isabelle was living in 1131.
6. Robert Bossu de Hellemont, second Earl of Leicester; Justiciar of England in 1167; died 1168; married Lady Amicia, daughter of Ralph de Waer, Earl of Norfolk, Suffolk, and Cambridge.
7. Robert Blanchemaine de Bellomont, Third Earl of Leicester, time of Henry II; Lord High Steward, of England; died 1196; married Lady Petronella, daughter of Hugh de Grantesmil, Lord of Hinckley and also Lord High Steward. Robert's daughter Annis married the first Simon de Montfort, Earl of Leicester, which he obtained by right of his wife.
8. Sir William de Hambleton, their son, born at the Manor of Hambleton, in Buckinghamshire. He was the founder of the famous house of Hamilton, in Scotland, his removal to that country probably due to the fact that he married Mary, ^{3rd} daughter of Gilbert
^

Earl of Strathram. (Spelling of this last questioned. Writing not legible.) (See 9. probably Strathearne).

9. Sir Gilbert de Hamilton married Lady Isabelle, daughter of Sir James Randolph, of Strathearne, and sister of Thomas, Earl of Mar and Governor of Scotland.

10. Sir William de Hamilton married Mary, daughter of Lord Gordon.

11. Sir David Hamilton, born 1375, married Lady Margaret Leslie, daughter of Walter, Earl of Roos. This marriage carries the line back to the de Warrens, Bruce of Armondale, the de Clares, William the Conqueror, the des Meshhines, the Grahams of Montrose, and practically every throne in Medieval Europe.

12. Sir David Hamilton, dead before 1392.

13. Sir John Hamilton married Lady Janet, daughter of Sir James Douglass of Dalkeith and Liddesdale, who died in 1420 and his wife, who was Agnes, daughter of the Earl of March.

14. Sir James Hamilton, who was hostage for the ransom of King James in 1424; Member of the Privy Council, of Scotland; married Lady Janet, daughter of Sir Alexander Livingston, whose wife was a daughter of Dundas, of Dundas.

15. Gavin Hamilton, fourth son, married Jean Muirhead.

16. John Hamilton, of Orbiston married Jean Hamilton, of Woodhall.

17. Gavin Hamilton, of Orbiston, (1512-1540) married Helen Wallace, of Cairnhill.

18. John Hamilton, of Orbiston, married Margaret Hamilton, of Hoggs; fell at Langsyde.

19. Margary Hamilton, of Orbiston, married David Dundas, of Duddington (See No. 18, page 11.)

The Bruce, of Avondale line, (No.11) carries the line to Kenneth MacAlpine, and the more or less legendary Irish Kings.

"The Dundasses", says Lord Woodhouslie in Transactions of the Royal Society, quoted in Burke's "Commoners" under Dundas, of Amiston, "are descended from a family to which historians and genealogists have assigned an origin of high antiquity and splendour but which has been still more remarkable for producing a series of men eminently distinguished for their public service in the highest offices in Scotland". Burke states further that the Charter granted by Waldgreve, eldest brother of Cospatrick, first Earl of March, in 1109 for the Barony of Dundas is the oldest document of the kind, belonging to any family in Scotland.

1. Crinan, head of one of the most opulent families in the north of England at the end of the Tenth century.

2. Maldred, married Algotha, daughter of Uthred, Lord of Northumberland, , whose wife was a daughter of Aethelread, the Unready.

3. Cospatrick, Earl of Northumberland, in right of his mother, lived in the time of the Conqueror. Disposessed, he fled to Scotland, where Malcolm Commore gave him lands and the Manor of Dunbar, making him first Earl of March. He died in 1139. His name is a corruption of this title--Comes Patricius-- and is often written Gospatrick. The Castle of Dunbar, committed to his keeping by King Malcolm is often called the inner gate to Scotland, , the outer being the fortified city of Berwick.

4. Uthred, second son, obtained the Barony of Dundas in West Lothian from his father's elder brother, Waldgreve or Waldeve, in 1109.

5. Helias de Dundas, assumed the arms of his grandfather,

the first Earl of March, with a "difference" to show cadency.

He died in the reign of William the Lion.

6. Serle de Dundas, often mentioned in Charters in the same reign.

7. Helias de Dundas.

8. Rudolphus de Dundas, named in a charter, temp Alexander III.

9. Saer de Dundas, swore allegiance to Edward in 1296; dead in 1300.

10. Sir Hugh de Dundas, supported William Wallace, and was loyal to him.

11. Sir George de Dundas, loyal supporter of Robert Bruce; fell at Duplin in 1332.

12. James de Dundas, dead before 1364.

13. John de Dundas, got charter for lands and Barony of Frigash from David II in February, 1364

14. James Dundas, of Dundas, on charters often between 1378 and 1403.

15. Sir Archibald Dundas, son of ^qfirst wife, whose name is unknown; high in favor with James II, who granted him two more baronies and wrote to him that he intended making him Earl of Forth, but was killed in battle before this further honor was conferred.

16. Sir William Dundas, of Dundas, heir in 1494; married Margaret ^eWenchope, of Widdery.

17. ^aWilliam Dundas of Duddington, second son.

18. David Dundas, of Duddington, second son, married Margaret Hamilton, daughter of John Hamilton, of Orbkston.

19. George Dundas, of Manor, ~~second son, born 1628, married~~ Margaret, daughter of William Livingston of West Inarter.

20. John Dundas, of Manor, married Elizabeth Hamilton, of Kilbrasment.

21. Ralph Dundas, of Manor, married Helen Burnett, whose father was Dr. Thomas Burnett, physician to King William and Queen Anne.

22. John Dundas, of Manor, born Oct. 16, 1701; married Anne Murray, daughter of John Murray of Polnaise; they had Ralph (Gen. Ralph Dundas) James and Thomas. The last two came to America.

23. James Dundas, second son, was born at Manor in Perthshire, in 1734. He came to Philadelphia with his brother, Thomas in 1757 and was first employed in a counting house in that city, but by 1765 was in partnership as Bartram & Dundas. Shortly after that date he was in business alone, selling imported dry goods, among other things. He was a member of the Patriot Association, organized to unearth and bring to justice the Tories who aided the British after the evacuation of Philadelphia in 1778. He signed the Non-Importation Agreement December 25, 1765. He was appointed to fix prices when profiteers were holding stocks of food stuff in the city. On February 23, 1779 he was chosen by the Congress to sign Bills of Credit issued by Congressional order. He married at Christ Church May 11, 1758 to Elizabeth Moore, of Scotland, doubtless affianced before he came to America. She died Aug. 31, 1787, at 47. They are both buried at Christ Church. She was the daughter of James Moore. They had twelve children, of whom only two sons, John and Burnett and four daughters, lived to maturity. James Dundas was paymaster of the people employed at Billingsgate in February, 1778; (this was some sort of Government work connected with the Revolution, as

it appears on the Revolutionary records); officer of the Pennsylvania militia; was taxed in the Northern Liberties of Philadelphia in 1769, '79, '82; in 1780 was assessed for an estate of \$1,000 and called clerk. He had wide commercial interests, among them a partnership in general merchandising business in Alexandria with a Mr. Hepburn for some years before the Revolution. This Mr. Hepburn was a friend of Colonel Washington, who mentions in his diary, that Mr. Hepburn went home with him from Alexandria, April 26, 1775, and stayed 'till April 28. There was a William Hepburn in Alexandria at that time who was cutting wheat in 1772, and "Mr. Hepburne" is probably the same William, proper names in that day being variously spelled, mostly phonetically and Hepburn was then and still is called "Hebburn" James Dundas brother Thomas was the "Mr. Dundas, of Reading" whose name frequently appears in the records.

24. John 2 Dundas, born in Philadelphia February 28, 1759; died in Alexandria Aug. 30, 1813. He served in the Revolution as Ensign of the Philadelphia militia, commissioned in 1780. He removed to Alexandria, Va. immediately after the Revolution, where he took over his father's interests there. He married Agnes, daughter of Thomas and grand-daughter of William and Agnes Hepburn in 1785, and died in 1820. They had James Hepburn Dundas: Nancy, who married Newton Keene; Sophia, married Thomas West Peyton; Eliza, William Hepburn; John; Thomas and Henry ^{Jameson!} ~~Thomas~~, all living; and the last three under age in 1814, when they appear in the Augusta records (II pg. 18) though the suit was brought in Cabell County, and they were all of Alexandria. John Dundas signed a petition with other merchants in November, 1785; two years later his partner, William Hepburn and F. Peyton signed another; in 1792 Hepburn and Dundas and Francis Peyton signed still another.

John Dundas was one of the really wealthy merchants of Alexandria at a time when it was the market for all that part of Virginia and Maryland. His home was a mansion he built, facing the square where Braddock's troops had been drilled, and where troops of the Revolution, and later wars were later drilled. It was called Castle Thunder, a huge house, long reported haunted. Mrs. Powell remembered sitting on the steps, as a little girl, to watch the Confederate soldiers being drilled. It was torn down just after the civil war. One of his grandsons visited Scotland and was the guest of the Dundases of Amiston and of Manor, and a correspondence was long maintained between the Scotch and American cousins. In 1791 both John Dundas and William Hepburn owned land in Kenawah Co., Va., now Cabell Co., W. Va.

25. Sophia Matilda Dundas, born Feb. 24, 1791 in Alexandria; died after 1864 in Cabell Co. W. Va.; married in the old Presbyterian church in Alexandria Feb. 26, 1811 to Thomas West Peyton I. After his death in 1819, she went to Kenawah Co. (W) Virginia, where one of her brothers was living, and died there after the close of the civil war, leaving all of her estate, which was considerable to a Ditch girl, foster daughter of her daughter, Virginia Peyton Watson. An affidavit, still in the possession of the family, made by Col. Francis Peyton after the death of her husband, , states that property was left to her by her father, John Dundas and by her grandfather, Thomas Hepburn.

70

HOVEY

1. 1. The first of the name definitely known to belong to this family is Daniel Randall Hovey, probably of the Mass. and Conn. family, but there is nothing to show he ever came to Ohio. The immigrant in this family is Daniel Hovey, to Ipswich, Mass., in 1680. Nothing is known of Daniel Randall Hovey, except his name.

2. Marshall Leander Randall Hovey married Eliza Cox, probably in 1840, or 1851, as their only child was born in Meigs Co., Ohio in 1842, then on the frontier. M.L.R. Hovey died in that year, and his wife shortly afterward.

3. William Marshall Hovey, born in 1842, was reared by neighbors after the death of his parents, while he was still a baby. He enlisted as a private in the Union Army, and was commissioned a second lieutenant on his twenty-first birthday; he was later a Captain. He married Ellen Eliza Thornburg shortly after the war was over. He was a prominent Mason, being at one time Grand Commander of the Knights Templar of W. Va. They had three children, a son who died unmarried, , a daughter Margaret, and

4. Mary Thornburg Hovey, born July 7, 1867, who married Capt. Thomas West Peyton III, Oct. 17, 1890 and died Jan. 3, 1902, leaving four sons: Thomas West IV, a Captain in the world war; Albert Hovey, also a World War Captain; John Thornburg, , under age during the World war, but served as a Private and Non-com during the whole period; and Robert Edwin, now a Captain in the Medical Corps, U.S. ~~Navy~~ ^{Army}. Mary Thornburg Hovey was ^{educated at} Mary Baldwin Seminary at Staunton, Va., where she was an honor graduate, and awarded the gold medal for excellence in music, and also a

SHEPHERD

1. First of the line in ~~V~~America was Thomas Shepherd, said to be of Shropshire, England, who died in Prince George Co., early in 1699, his Will being proved there in April, of that year, and recorded in the First Inventory Book.

2. William Shepherd owned land at the mouth of Antietam Creek, opposite the present town of Shepherdstown, Va. in 1715. On Oct. 12, 1717, he conveyed land to Phillip Gitting, at the head of Beaver, Dam creek, and on the same day received title to land in Prince George Co, called "Shepherd's Purchase", which he sold to James Book in 1721. His wife was Sarah _____ as her name appears on a deed he made in 1739. He died between 1741 and 1745. He had only one brother--John, who left three sons.

3. Thomas Shepherd, founder of Shepherdstown, Va. was born in 1705 and died between March and September, 1776. He married Elizabeth Van Meter and had ten children: David, the eldest, born in 1734. Thomas moved to Pack Horse Ford in 1734, when he was granted 222 acres of land, a part of the Van Meter 40,000 acres. He appears often in the Frederick Co. records thereafter. An Act of the Virginia Assembly in November, 1762, authorizes him "to erect the town of Mechlenburg". During the French and Indian war he laid this land off in small tracts which he sold to the settlers driven in from further west by Indian atrocities, the purchase price to be paid after the war was over, and only a nominal rental till that time. The town that grew up from this settlement was re-named in his honor. All of his sons were prominent in the Revolution. A tract of land

across the river in Maryland, called Pell Mell, was willed by John Van Meter to his daughter, Elizabeth Shepherd, this Will also naming her grand-son, Thomas Thornburg. Thomas Shepherd is called Captain in the old records.

4. Sarah Shepherd, born about 1736, second child, died in Shepherdstown Oct. 18, 1780. She married Thomas Thornburg about 1751.

- VAN METER -

1. Jan Jooston von Meteren came to New Amsterdam with his wife, Macyken Hendricksen and five children in the Voz, September 12, 1662, and settled at Wyldwick (now Kingston, N.Y.). He took ~~th~~ the oath of allegiance between Oct. 21 and 26, 1664 and was made a magistrate of Hurley and Marbletown in October, 1673, with Louis du Bois, and two others; took the oath of allegiance to England Sept. 1, 1689; purchased, with others, 500 acres of land at Lazy Point, in East Jersey on the Delaware, twenty miles north-east of Philadelphia Oct. 18, 1693, but returned to Ulster Co., N.Y. before ~~the~~ June the next year, and sold his share in May, 1699. In 1700 he purchased 1800 acres in Somerset Co. East jersey, and died after May, 1706, when he was sponsor in baptism for his great granddaughter, Sarah, child of his grand son, Jan van Meteren. He may have been earlier in New Amsterdam, for one of his name was appointed to help enclose New Dorp in 1661, and it was not unusual for men to come over and investigate, returning later for their families. He was, of course, a farmer, appointed to referee a lawsuit in 1665; first appointed scheppen (magistrate) in 1668; owned many books and purchased others at various sales of estates; was Justice of Marbledorp in March, 1661, when he witnessed a Will. His own Will, made in Marbledorp in Dec. 1681, was proved in Burlington, N.J. June, 1706.

2. Joost Jansen van Meteren, fourth child, and eldest son, ~~was~~ born about 1656 in Guelderland, in Holland. He probably died before his father, as no mention of him appears after 1695. He was one of the children captured by Indians (See article on du Bois). He married Sara du Bois Dec. 12, 1682 at the Pals, at which time his residence is given as Marbledorp, Ulster Co.

3. Jan van Meteren, later known as John Van Meter, was born in October, 1683. He administered his grand father's estate in Burlington in 1706, and then lived at Raritan, N.J., where he married ~~Margaret~~ ^{Sarah Bordine, in 1705. About 1810, he m. 2 Margaret,} whose family name is unknown, and by her had eight children. In June, 1714, he owned a fourth interest in 3000 acres of land in Salem Co., N. J. and later bought more till he and his younger brother, Isaac, owned 6000 acres, together. Among other activities, he was an Indian trader, going as far south as the Cherokee county in Eastern Tennessee and was deeply impressed with the territory in the Valley of Virginia and Maryland. This probably accounts for the fact that he removed to the Maryland side of the Potomac, where he was living, in Frederick Co. in November, 1726, being the date of a grant of land at the mouth of Meteia River, on the Monocacy. In 1730, he ~~was~~ was "of Prince George Co. Md." when he sold some of the Salem, N.J. tract. In June, 1730, he had a grant of 10,000 acres in the Northern neck of Virginia; he later increased his holdings there and his brother Isaac also acquired land there, 'till, together, they owned 40,000 acres. It was in the Valley of Virginia that they sold it to Joost Hite and Robert McKay, of Pennsylvania, and it was known as the Hite Purchase. He made his Will in _____ 1745, naming his daughter Elizabeth Shepherd and his grandson, Thomas Thornbury, either his grand son-in-law or his great grandson. He had given land to his son-in-law, Thomas Shepherd the previous year.

4. Elizabeth Van Meter, born in Somerset, N.J. about 1715, eldest child of a second marriage married in 1733 Thomas Shepherd, then of Maryland. Died in Shepherdstown, Va. 1793.

ENGLISH ROYAL LINE TO ALFRED.

1. Alfred, the Great, of England.
2. Aelfryth, married Baldwin II, of Flanders, called the Bald; died 918.
3. Arnulf, Count of Flanders; he murdered the Duke of Normandy; married one Adela de Vermandois.
4. Baldwin, died before his father; established weaving industry in Flanders.
5. Arnulf, the Younger, succeeded his grand-father; died 989.
6. Baldwin IV called Comley Beard; died 1036
7. Baldwin V. called "of Lille", married Adela, daughter of Herbert II, of France.
8. Matilda, wife of William of Normandy, Conqueror of England. The mother of Baldwin II was Judith, daughter of Charles, the Bald, of France, and step-mother of Alfred. This gives another line to Charlemagne.

CLENDENNIN.

1. Archibald Clendenin, variously spelled, was born in Scotland, and was living in Rockbridge Co., Va. in 1733; died in 1749.

2. Capt. Charles Clendennin, born in Scotland, living in Greenbrier County, prior to 1730; he was Captain in the militia at the Battle of Point Pleasant in Dunmore's war, where two of his sons, George and William, were privates. He died at Fort Clendenin, first building at what is now Charleston, West Virginia, which town his sons laid off, and named in his ~~xxxx~~ ~~xxx~~ honor.

3. Maj. William Clendenin, second son, came with his father and elder brother George to the Kanawah country in 1786. He was severely wounded at the Battle of Point Pleasant, where he was a private; was a lieutenant in the Greenbrier County militia and a Captain in the Augusta County militia during the Revolution; Major in Kanawah Co., ^{in 1789.} ~~1792-93~~; served in the vicinity of Point Pleasant in 1797 and five years later moved again to a place about nine miles from the mouth of the Kanawah River, where he built the first house in what is now Clendenin District. In 1803 he carried to Richmond a petition for the creation of Mason Co. and on its organization the following year was made one of the first Board of Justices and elected to represent the new county in the Assembly. He married Margaret Handl Handley, daughter of John Handley in Greenbrier Co. in 1783, and by her had Elizabeth (8-28-1775), Sophia, (3-27-1787), Charles (7-18-1789), John (11-18-1790) died young, Andrew (6-30-1796) and Anne (7-31-1799). These dates are from an old Bible, once belonging to Charles Clendenin, brought from Scotland, and still in the possession of the family. It gives Williams birth at May 23 1753 and Margaret's at May 10 1752.

82

- 2 -

(William Clendenin's portrait appears in the West Virginia Magazine, a copy of an oil painting is in the Capitol Building

4. Sophia Clendenin, second child, born 3-27-1787; died 4-17-1823. She was married to John Miller, of Mason County 1-26-1806, and died in Teay's Valley.

PROGENITORS OF HUGH CAPET.

1. Robert, the Strong, Duke of all the lands between the Loire and the Seine; killed in battle 866.

2. Robert, Count of Paris; younger brother of Eudes, King of the Franks; on the death of Eudes, Robert was chosen to succeed him but refused.

3. Hugh, the great, Duke of the Franks, married Hedwiga, daughter of Henry, the Fowler, German Emperor.

4. Hugh Capet.

MILLER.

1. Ullrich Mueller, immigrant from Zweibrucken, Germany, burgher; came to America with his son, Jacob and his family in 1749.

2. Jacob Mueller, born 1698; landed in Philadelphia Sept. 5, 1749, and was, for a short time, in York Co., Pa. but was in the Shenandoah Valley early in 1752, his first grant being recorded in April of that year. With him came his father, his wife Barbara, and at least seven children, that number being named in his will. He bequeathed much land and books "in English and Dutch". He died in May, 1776. Within ten years after he came to the Valley he had accumulated 2,000 acres of land and the town of ~~Muellerstadt~~ was laid out on it. This town was incorporated in 1761 Woodstock and Jacob Miller was one of the first Trustees as was Burr Harrison.

3. Christian Miller, fourth child, was born in Zweibrucken in 1744; he married Catherine Wiseman, daughter of John Wiseman, in 1771; she was born in 1746 and died 1837. He died in 1838. The family were Dunkards, and therefore, should have been "conscientious objectors": nevertheless, Christian enlisted, was a Sergeant in the militia during the Revolution and drew a pension, the papers saying he acted as a prison guard. At the time of his death, he was the last Revolutionary soldier in the County.

4. John Miller, born May 31, 1781, died March 19, 1836; married to Sophie Clendenin Jan. 26, 1806. He left home in 1795, his father giving him 40 pounds in money to make a start in life, equivalent in purchasing power, to \$1,000.00, or nearly that. On his way west, he stopped for a time, at Fort Clendenin but went on to Gallipolis,, Ohio, an old French settlement

where only two persons spoke English, so the youngster had to learn French. He already spoke German, of course. He lived there till 1810, when he re-crossed the Ohio and built the first brick house in Mason Co. He had met Sophia Clendenin on his way west when she was a child and he was fourteen, but renewed his acquaintance when her parents moved to the river, and married her when she was grown. After her death in Teay's Valley in 1823 he removed to the vicinity of Point Pleasant, where he bought a large tract of land known as Locust Grove which had been a part of Gen. George Washington's Revolutionary grant. He was a Mason for forty years, a charter member of Morning Dawn Lodge, F & A M. of Gallipolis, Ohio.

5. Margaret Catherine Miller, named for both grandmothers, was born Nov. 25, 1818, and married to Thomas Thornburg Dec. 12, 1837. She died August 19, 1859.

- THORNBURG -

It is not known from what part of Britain this family derives. They are said to be Welch, but the name is found in England as early as ~~1252~~ 1379, as the name appears early in Virginia, Maryland, and Pennsylvania as Thornbury, it is more likely English. The first so far certainly to be known of this line is::

1. Thomas Thornburg, married about 1751, to Sarah, daughter of Thomas and Elizabeth (Van Meter) Sheperd. This will is on record in Martinsburg, W. Va. , dated July 30, 1787; a codicil make September 11, 1789 and proved October 20, 1789: it names sons Thomas, Hezekiah, Isaiah, and Azariah, and daughters Mercy and Sarah. The codicil leaves an additional L 50 of "my son Thomas Thornburg, Jr's" legacy to Ephraim Thornburg. His will names a grandson Thomas Thornburg, also.

2. Thomas Thornburg was born, according to his tombstone, Sept. 9, 1752 and died May 1793; he was born and is buried in Shepherdstown, Va. He was a Lieutenant under J. Swearingen in the County Militia May 15, 1781 in Berkley Co. militia. His first wife was Ruth _____, married about 1776, by whom he had Ephraim, born Feb. 13, 1778, and Ruth, died in the following month. Ephraim's Bible is owned by H.O. Thornburg, Huntington, W. Va. Thomas married, second, Mrs. Prudence Collirn who survived him many years, keeping an ordinary in Shepherdstown from 1794 to 1801. Her will was made 12-26-1806 and recorded in Charlestown (now W. Va) on Dec. 13, 1808; it names a son, William Collirn; step-son, Ephraim Thornburg; daughters Elizabeth and Prudence; sons, Thomas and Solomon Thornburg, and grand-daughter, Prudence Collirn. Thomas 2 Thornburg's estate

was appraised in Berkeley County May 21, 1793. This administrator gave bond for \$1,000.00.

3. Solomon Thornburg, born June 17, 1791, died Dec. 30, 1851; married at Shepherdstown Jan. 28, 1813 to Mary Magdalen Staley, Jacob's will being recorded in Book II, Pg 198 in Martinsburg Oct. 28, 1798. She was called Polly, and the name is often written Stalley and Stanley, but the family is believed to be German in origin. Solomon and Polly came to what is now Cabell Co., W. Va., in 1813 and settled on the Halsey Fork of Mud River, where he was a blacksmith and farmer for many years. In Nov. 1832 he purchased the farm at Guyandotte still owned by the family, where he lived for more than twenty years. He represented Cabell Co. in the Virginia Assembly in-----

4. Thomas Thornburg, born Oct. 6, 1818; died Oct. 31, 1897; married Dec. 12, 1837 to Margaret Catherine Miller. He was a successful merchant and substantial citizen, ; a member of the Assembly of Virginia, beginning in 1857, and of the Constitutional Convention of West Virginia in 1872, as well as holding various county offices. His will, recorded in Cabell Co., names three sons and five daughters.

5. Ellen Eliza Thornburg, born 3-12-1842; married Capt. William Marshall Hovey of the Union army before 1867 and died

gold medal for her.

90

ONE PEYTON LINE TO THE GERMAN EMPERORS.

1. Henry, the Fowler (876-936)
2. Henry, the Wrangler, Duke of Bavaria,
3. Henry II, of the Holy Roman Empire,
4. Agnes, married Edward, son of Edmund Ironside, who was
a son of Aethelread, the Unready, by his first wife.
5. Margaret, married Malcolm Canmore, of Scotland.
6. Maufe, married Henry II, of England.

ROYAL LINES.

The Counts of Vermandois were descended in direct male line from Charlemagne and belong to Dundas and Hubbell.

1. Charlemagne had by his firstwife ~~had~~ *Hildegunde, had*
2. Pepin IV., King of Lombardy; married the Lady Bertha.
3. Bernard, King of Italy, married Lady Cingarde of Leon.
4. Pepin V, Lord of Sainte Questin, (840).
5. Herbert I, Count of Vermandois (902) married Princess Anne, of France.
6. Herbert II, Count of Vermandois, (943) married Lady Hilda, of Anjou.
7. Albert, Count of Vermandois, (988) married Princess Gisherg~~ha~~, of France.
8. Herbert III, Count of Vermandois, (1015) married Ermin-garde de Bugenes.
9. Otto I, Count of Vermandois (1045) married Princess Patia
10. Herbert IV of Vermandois, (107⁹~~0~~) married Lady Adelaide de Valois, obtaining the title of Countship of Valois in his wife's right and died, after leaving his estate to his daughter, Adele, who married Hugh, son of Henry I, of France.

92

DU BOIS.

I. Louis du Bois, son of Chretien du Bois, believed to be of the old family of Astors, but his descent cannot be proven, as the family was of the old religion, and Chretien was a Huguenot. In such cases the name of the "Apostate" was carefully stricken from all the family records. At any rate, no trace of Chretien du Bois' ancestors can be found. His son was born Oct. 28, 1626 and fled to Mannheim, Germany, to escape prosecution before 1655, where he married Catherine Blauchen, daughter of Matthew Blauchenn, a distiller of that city. Two sons were born in Mannheim, and in 1665 they emigrated to New Amsterdam and settled at New Paltz (now Hurley, N.Y.). He was one of the twelve Potentates of New Paltz, signing first; this was the famous Douzine, a self-perpetuating body that administered the affairs of Palz and Hurley for more than a hundred years. In 1663, his wife and children with the wife and three children of Jan Jooston, Van Meteren were taken captive by the Indians, and it was more than three months before they could be located. Finally, the searching party heard a voice singing a hymn. It was Catherine du Bois, who was tied to a stake for burning, her baby Sara in her arms, who had been ordered by her captors to sing a hymn they had heard her sing before, before firing the wood piled all about her. This Psalm was sung for more than a hundred years at all du Bois family gatherings, in memory of her courage and spirit. Louis du Bois was both farmer and trader and a very superior person, always a leader. He was an Officer in the Colonial forces, went against the Indians in ^{1670;} ~~1870;~~ died in Kingston, N.Y. in June, 1679. His father lived near Lille in French Flanders and is believed to be of the family of the Seigneurs of Beaufenny and de Bousse, two old estates at Wicies.

93

2. Sara du Bois, baptized at Wyldwick Sept.14, 1664 but then nearly two years old, as she was an infant when captured in June, 1663. She married December 12, 1682 Joost Jansen Van Meteren, also one of the captured children.

COUNTS OF VERMANDOIS.

They are descended in direct male line from Charlemagne,
as follows:

1. Charlemagne, ~~had~~ by his first wife, Hildegarde, had
2. Pepin IV, King of Lombardy; married the Lady Bertha.
3. Bernard, King of Italy; married Lady Cingarde of Leenn.
4. Pepin V. Lord of Sainte Questin.
5. Herbert I, Count of Vermandois; married Princess Anne, of France; killed in 902, by assassin, in the pay of Baldwin II, of Flanders.
6. Herbert II, Count of Vermandois, increased his territory, captured Charles the Simple, of France, and held him a prisoner for six years. He married his widow, Edgifu, daughter of Edward, the Elder of England.

His successors were Albert I, Herbert III, Albert II and Otto; but some of these were his brothers, and perhaps only one, a son. They were succeeded by his son.

10. Herbert IV. Count of Vermandois, who married Lady Adelaide de Valois and in 1077 received that Countship in right of his wife. He died in 1079, leaving his estates to his only child, Adela, who married Hugh, younger son of Henry I, of France.

ROS OF HAMLAKE.

1. Peter de Ros, first of the name in England, seems to have been one of the foreign knights brought over from Normandy in the time of Henry I to help curb the power of his turbulent Barons. He married Adeline, sister and co-heiress of Walter d'Espece.

2. Robert de Ros married Sybella de Valoines.

3. Everard de Ros married Roysia de Truesbal, of Worter in Holdeness, and died in 1186.

4. Robert de Ros, called Furfau, time of Richard I; obtained the whole Barony of his ancestor, Walter de Espece. He was one of the Barons in Arms against John and a signatory of Magna Charta. He built Hamlake Castle, in York and Welche Castle in Northumberland; he married Isabella, illegitimate daughter of William, the Lion, of Scotland. He died in 1227 and is buried in Temple Church, London.

5. William de Ros, of Hamlake; married Lucy, daughter of Reginald Fitz Piers, of Wales. He died in 1250.

6. Robert de Ros, first Baron de Ros; married Isabella, daughter of William d'Albany (fourth of the name, and title descended from Robert de Todney, who had the Barony d'Aubeni from William I): built Belvoir Castle in Leicestershire; taken prisoner at Lewes.

7. William, second Baron de Ros, had a renewed grant of ~~Welche~~ Castle; was summoned to Parliament in 1294 (22 Edw I) and was one of the claimants to the Scottish throne through his great grand-mother Isabella, daughter of William, the Lion. He married Matilda, daughter and co-heiress of John de Vaux, and died in 1316.

8. William, Baron de Ros, married Margaret, sister of Giles,

Lord Bradlewes of Leed's Castle. She died in 1363, and he in 1342.

9. Thomas, fifth Baron de Ros; the fourth being his elder brother, who died childless: married Beatrice, daughter of Rolf Stafford, first Earl of Stafford. She died in 1415, and he in 1383.

10. William, seventh Baron de Ros, K.G., Lord Treasurer of England time of Henry IV; married Margaret, daughter of John, Lord Arundel, and died Sept. 1, 1414. She died July 3, 1494.

11. Sir Thomas de Ros, ninth Baron; married Eleanor, daughter of Richard Beau Champ, Earl of Warwick. He died Aug. 18, 1431

12. Thomas, 10th Baron de Ros; married Philippa, daughter of John, Lord Tiptoft. Engaging in one of the frequent uprisings, he was taken by the Lancastrians, beheaded, and his estate confiscated in May, 1464. Then his son, Edmund got back both titles and estates when the Yorkists returned to power in 1485, but died without a son and his estate was divided among his three sisters.

13. Eleanor, eldest daughter of Thomas, tenth Baron de Ros, married Sir Robert Manners.

14. George Manners, made 12th Baron de Ros in 1515, in his mother's right; married Ann, daughter of Sir Thomas St. Leger and his wife, Anne Plantagenet, sister of Edward IV. George Manners died in October, 1513, and his wife in May, 1526.

15. Lady Eleanor married John, second Earl of Bath.

16. Lady Cecilia Bourcier married Rt. Hon. Thomas Peyton,

(of V.)

PEYTON ROYAL LINE .

1. Edward III, of England, married Phillappa de Hamhault. Hamhault
2. Thomas Gloucester, ~~seventh son~~ seventh son, Protector of the Realm during the minority of Richard II. He married Alienora (Elinor), daughter and co-heiress of Humphrey de Bohm, Earl of Herford, Essex, and Northampton, who died in 1372. Thomas, of Gloucester, was murdered at Colais.
3. Anne Plautagenet, married third William Bouria, Earl of Eu.
4. Sir William Bour^{ia}~~ex~~, second son, married Lady Thomassina, daughter of Richard Haukford, Esq., whose wife ^fwas Elizabeth, daughter and heiress of Fulke, seventh Baron of Fitz Warrine. This title, which lapsed on the death of Fulke without a male heir, was re-granted to his daughter's son-in-law, a "First Baron Fitz Warrine, of the new creation".
5. Sir Fulke Boureie^{it}, 2nd Baron Fitz Warrine, married Lady Elizabeth Dynham, sister and heiress of John, Lord ^{Dynham}~~Gynham~~.
6. John, 3rd Baron Fitz Warrine, created Earl of Bath in ¹⁵³⁶1836; married Lady Cecilia, ~~daughter of George Manners~~, Earl of Errors Ross and sister to Thomas, 1st Earl of Rutland.
7. John, 2nd Earl of Bath; died 1560; married Lady Elinor, daughter of George Manners, and of Ross and sister of Thomas, 1st Earl of Rutland.
8. Lady Cecilia Boureie^x, married Rt. Honorable Thomas Peyton, Customer of Plymouth and M.P. for Dunwich in 1557.

DUKES OF NORMANDY,

Prepared partly ^{from *Humies England and partly*} from a translation by du du Chaillu, of the Old Horse Sagas.

1 & 2. Rognvold, Maere Jarl, (Earl of Maera), married Hagnhilda daughter of Rholf Nefja; both were descended from Halddan, the Old. They had three sons, of whom the second, Rholf, was called Congu (the Walker) because he was so hugh a man that no horse could carry him, and he went into battle on foot. He visited England in his youth and was a guard at Alfred's Court, where he learned much of his statecraft, , and was perhaps, inspired by the great King. He conquered Vallard (Northern France) in 908 & 909, and in the latter year Charles, the Simple ceded the conquered territory to him as a vassle, making him Duke of Normandy. That is to say "of the Northmen" which was the name given then to all Scandinavians. He was baptized as a Christian in 912 and married Gissela, the king's daughter, the same year. He shines in legand and story as Rollo.

3. William Longsword married the daughter of Hugh, Count of Paris, and Duke of France, whose wife was Haedwig, daughter of Henry, the Fowler, of Germany. He was murdered at the Court of Flanders by order of his Uncle, Count Arnself I.

4. Richard I, called "the fearless" and "the Powerful" married Gunnora, a Danish woman, of Brittainy. She had a sister, Ave lina, from whom, also the Peyton line descends.

5. Richard, the Good.

6. Robert le Diable.

7. William, Conqueror of England, illegitimate son, acknowledged by his father, who forced his Barons to swear allegiance to the child, then seven, as his successor in case he should not

return from a pilgrimage to Jerusalem. His mother was Allora, daughter of a tanner of Palaise, whose sons by a marriage contracted after Robert's death, were staunch supporters of William, at Hastings. In his early youth, William proved himself a splendid soldier and a master of statecraft. He married Matilda, daughter of Baldwin V. of Lille, Count of Flanders.

FITZ-WARRINE.

This line belongs to both Peyton and Hubbell.

1. Warrine de Meez; probably an Angevin, many of whom came over in the time of Henry II.

2. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, who succeeded his father in large landed buildings; living in 1190, but died in ~~1190~~ 1195, baron by tenure, time of Richard I.

3. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, dead in 1263; baron by tenure.

4. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, living in 1295; baron by tenure

5. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, living in ¹³⁴⁹~~1314~~; baron by tenure

6. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, living in 1349; baron by tenure.

7. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, living in 1373; baron by tenure.

8. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, living in 1377; baron by tenure.

9. Fulke Fitz-Warrine, living in 1391; baron by tenure

10. ~~Elizabeth~~ married Richard Haukford, Esq; heiress; the title lapsed with her.

11. Lady Thomasina married Sir William Boureier (No.4, page (25)

- - - - -

Fulke Fits-Warrine of Joluis² time was outlawed when that Prince came ~~in~~ the throne because once when they were boys he had beaten John at chess. (Ditchfield's Old Village Life, page 83).

Sir William Fitz-Warrine and Sir Fulke Fitz-Warrine were made K. G. in the reign of Edward III.

DE BOHNS.

1. Milo, of Gloucester, Lord Constable of England; made Earl of Huxford by Maude in 1141; succeeded by three sons, none having male heirs, and then by a daughter.

2. Margaret.

3. Humphrey de Bohm, created Earl of Herford in his mother's right, and so Lord Constable of England in 1187. Signed Magna Charta.

4. Humphrey de Bohm, Earl of Herford in 1220.

5. Humphrey de Bohm, Earl of Herford in 1227.

6. Humphrey de Bohm, Earl of Herford in 1298; killed at Buroughbridge 1322.

7. Humphrey de Bohm, succeeded in 1361; made K.G.; died 1372.

8. Elinor de Bohm, co-heiress; Married Thomas, of Gloucester.

ANGLE~~S~~^ESAXON ROYAL LINE, ACCEPTED BY ORDER OF
THE CURON.

1. Cerdic, 495.
2. Kenrie
3. Ceanlgn,
4. Cuthwin,
5. Cutha,
6. Ceolwald
7. Cenrid,
8. Engild,
9. Eoppa,
10. Eofd
11. Ealkmond,
12. Egbert, first King of England; married Raedburgha.
13. Aethelwulf, married Osburgha, daughter of his father's
cup bearer; married, second, Judith, daughter of Charles,
the Bald, of France, whom he met at the French Court, where
he stopped for a time on his way home from Rome, where
he went on a pilgrimage when his son Alfred was seven, tak-
ing the child with him.
14. Alfred, the Great, married ^{Ealibellhth}~~Elizabth~~ (variously spelled).
15. Aelfthryth married Baldwin II, of Flanders.

CAELOVINGIAN LINE.

1. Pepin, of London, 598-629, Mayor of the Palace, in Austrasia.
2. Begga, married ^{Ansegis} ~~Ansegis~~ ~~Augeguta~~, sons of Arnulf, Bishop of Metz.
3. Pepin, of Heristal, died ⁷¹⁴ ~~713~~; also Mayor of the Palace, an office that amounted to Prime Minister and Commander-in-Chief of Austrasia.
4. Charles Martel, victor at Tours in 732; illegitimate son.
5. Pepin le Bref, who gave the Popes their first temporal power in the grant known as the Donation of Pepin. He was first King of the Franks, ^{so} ~~as~~ created in 752. His wife was Bertrade. He died in 768.
6. Charlemagne, 768-814.
7. Ludwig, (Louis le Debonnaire) 814-840; married second, Judith of Bavaria. His mother was Hildegarde
8. Charles, the Bold (843-877 married Irmintrude a' Orleans; their daughter, Judith, married Aethelwulf, of England as his second wife, when Alfred was about seven, and taught him to read. After his death, she married Baldwin ^I ~~I~~ of Flanders.
9. Louis, the Stammerer, 877-879.
10. Charles, the Simple married Edgiva, daughter of Edward, ~~the~~ the Elder of England. She married, second, Herbert II, Count of Vermandois.
11. Gisela, married Duke Robert, of Normandy, before his conversion Congku Rholf or Holl^e.

She and her husband, Thomas West Peyton I,
~~They~~ had five children:

1. Rose Peyton. (Died in infancy.)

2. ^{Ann} Virginia Peyton. Married ^{b. at Alexandria, Va.,}
~~James~~ ^{Dec. 15, 1811} ~~Walson~~ ^{Nov. 1830} ~~no issue.~~

Will probated at Huntington,

Feb. 14, 1870. No issue.

(She d. Jan 15, 1870 - Blue
 Sulphur Cemetery)

(^{adopted} One daughter Mary V. Walson

b. Oct 3, 1836

d. Dec 8, 1909

m. James Everett

b. Feb. 6, 1823

d. Aug 11, 1893. #

3. Captain Thomas West Peyton II,

born in Cuba, May 13, 1818;

came, while a youth, to

Alexandria, Virginia; attended

Kentucky Military Institute,

and later located at New

Orleans, Louisiana. He served

in both the Mexican, and

(Turn over several pages) to next page.

Mrs. Sophia M. Peyton. She and her daughter, Mrs. Ann Virginia Watson, farmed this land by tenants and slaves. Mrs. Peyton and her daughter entertained much. They had the finest ~~home~~ and ~~the~~ best equipped home in this section. She was an extreme southern woman from New Orleans. She was a woman of much refinement, and was very intellectual. ^{Many} ~~much~~ of her library ^{books} and silver, as well as other curios, ~~is~~ ^{are} now in the hands of her ~~so~~ step grandson Alex. Everett of Barboursville, ^{and} bears silent witness to the luxury of this fine old southern home.

(Now turn to next page checked.)

The Peytons

John Peyton, the founder of this branch of the Peyton family in America, came from England, and settled at Aquia, on the Potomac River, in Virginia.

One of his descendants, probably a son, was Col. Francis Peyton who married Sarah West, a daughter of Anthony West, who also came from England, in 1622, and settled in what is now Accomac County, Va.

Col. Francis Peyton and wife Sarah West Peyton had a son Thomas West Peyton, who became a Captain of Militia in the War of 1812. He was born about 1784, and died in 1819. He was in the first vestry of St. Paul's Church, Alexandria, Virginia, in 1801; Justice, 1814, Captain of Militia, 1812. Captain Peyton and his family resided for a number of years, in Cuba, but returned to the United States.

March 6, 1811, Captain Thomas West Peyton & I married Sophia Matilda Dundas, sister to John, Thomas, and Henry Thompson Dundas, who with their sister Eliza, were early settlers of Cabell County.

Sophia Matilda Dundas was born, at Humphries, ~~County~~, Virginia, Feb. ~~5~~¹⁴, 1791, and died, at her home, a short distance below Blue Sulphur Springs, March 13/870.

* She came as a widow to Cabell County, about 1856, ^{possibly earlier} and settled on the farm, now known as the Edwards farm below Blue Sulphur Springs, on Route 60, then the old Kanawha Turnpike. She had married Thomas West Peyton I, who died 1819.

All the land in the Bend of Mud River below Blue Sulphur was owned by Henry J. and Thomas Dundas. Henry J. Dundas sold all or part of his interest to his sister, (See next sheet)

Census of 1850 lists Dr. John Peyton, Physician, aged 36, hence b. 1815

Page or pages missing
 * Civil Wars; he was a Lieutenant of Infantry, in the Mexican War, and a Captain of Infantry, in the Confederate Army, during the Civil War. He was wounded and taken prisoner at Stone River, Tennessee, and died of his wounds, on or about Jan. 3, 1863.

Feb. 3, 1850, he married, at New Orleans, Sarah O'Hood, born at Inam, Ireland, Feb. 22, 1834. She died at Huntington, W. Va., Dec. 15, 1893. They had six children:

I. Eliza Peyton. Married Thomas Dundas Peyton, son of Mr. John Peyton, her ^{first} cousin.

They had eight children:

1. William. Died. No issue (Believed)
2. Virginia. Married — Bailey. Died at Pittsburgh. Three children, John, Ruth, and one not known to this writer.
3. Thomas E. Peyton. Resident in Huntington on 31st St.

- ✓
4. Alice Gertrude. Died single. Buried at Huntington.
 5. Ernest Peyton. Resides in Huntington
 6. Charles Peyton. Deceased. Buried in Huntington Kentucky.
 7. Harvey Peyton, Gauley Bridge, W. Va.
 8. Sarah Peyton. Married. Lives in State of Washington.

II. Alice Peyton. Married 1903 or 1904, Lee Trimble. No issue. Died in Huntington, W. Va., 1926

III. Ann Virginia Peyton. Married Charles M. Ricketts, July 16, 1885. Died in Huntington, W. Va., 1913.

IV. Sarah M. Peyton. Died unmarried at Huntington, 1923. Known as "Aunt Sallie", by her many friends, she was a teacher and principal in the City Schools of Huntington from 1880 until her death. Loved and remembered by her many pupils.

✓
 () V. Thomas West Peyton III, born, Huntington, W. Va., Aug. 10, 1860, died, at Barboursville, June 12, 1912. Prominent member of the Cabell County Bar. Clerk of the Circuit Court 1895-1891. Captain Co. I, Second Virginia National Guard. Married, Oct. 7, 1890, Mary Thornburg Hovey, born July 7, 1867, died Jan. 3, 1902. She was the daughter of William Marshall and Ellen Eliza Thornburg Hovey. They had four children:

1. Captain Thomas West Peyton IV, born at Huntington, Aug 13, 1891. Attorney; Captain in World War I, and served with the A. E. F. Major of the organized reserves since Aug. 12, 1930. Married, July 24, 1912, Gay Zenith Vaughn, daughter

✓
of Arthur Loving and Sarah
Paulina (Rippletoe) Vaughn, residents
of _____.

2. Major Albert Hovey Peyton, born
at Huntington, March 17, 1893;
Educated at Morris Harvey College;
entered West Virginia National
Guard, 1913; Promoted to
2nd Lieutenant, Aug. 1, 1914;
Mexican Border service, 1916-
1917; appointed 2nd Lt.,
Regular Army, June 19, 1917;
promoted 1st Lt., and Captain,
1917. Captain Co. H., 51st
Infantry, part of 6th
Division; with A. E. F.
July, 1918, to June, 1919.
Major U. S. Army since Novem-
ber, 1930. Married July 30,
1919, Betty Tyler, born Evan-
ston, Illinois, Dec. 18, 1896,
daughter of Bert Albert and
Bertha Kellogg Tyler, descent
and of Job Tyler.

✓
who came from England to Boston, Mass., in 1635, and was a proprietor of Charlestown, Massachusetts, 1636.

They had two children:

1. Virginia Tyler Peyton, born Rockford, Illinois, May 19, 1920.
2. Sarah West Peyton, born Fort Sam Houston, San Antonio, Texas, August 25, 1923.
3. John Thornburg Peyton, born at Barboursville, W. Va., March 2, 1897. Accountant. Educated Huntington High School. Enlisted in Company I, 2nd West Virginia National Guard at outbreak of World War; served in France with the 150th Infantry, of the 38th or Cyclone Division. Promoted to rank and served with this division as Pl. Sgt. - Major; returned to
(Go to second page over)

(See over) ✓

IV John Peyton, M.D., had two sons,
one of whom Thomas Dundas
Peyton, married Eliza Peyton,
his first cousin. She was
daughter of Thomas West Peyton II.
and Sarah O'Dowd Peyton.
Thomas D. Peyton died in
Huntington, about 1907.

The other son, Francis W. Peyton,
said to be a graduate of
the University of Virginia,
lived in Cabell County,
where he died, about 1918.
He was a R. R. Contractor.

He married Cora V. Baum
gardner, daughter of John B.
("Fatty")
James Baumgardner, and
wife ^{Louisa B. Baumgardner} Cora ^{Winnia Peyton} was

May 20, 1857
b. May 19, 1856 d. Jan 4, 1934,

~~Aged 77-7-15~~ (From Blue
Sulphur Spring, W. Va.)

~~76-7-14~~
Aged 76 yrs. 7 mos. and 15 days.
The Baumgardner Bible gives
her birth as above.

Paranthesis

Census 1850 gave
John Peyton, Age 35,
Physician.

Question
Cora V. Peyton
seems to have been
daughter of "Fatty" (John B.)
Baumgardner.
Their Bible shows
she was b. May 20, 1857.

✓
The United States, December, 1918.

Married Bertha Mae Ullman.

Two children:

1. Thoriburg Arthur Peyton. Died
in infancy, at Tampa, Florida

2. John Thomas Peyton, born
Feb. 4, 1923.

4. Captain Robert Edwin Peyton,
born, Huntington, W. Va.,
Dec. 24, 1901. Attended Hunting-
ton High School, Johns Hopkins
University, and University
of Virginia, where he received
his M. D. degree, 1928. Too
young for the World War,
He became a corporal in
the cadet corps, at high
school; ROTC student
at Johns Hopkins, Cadet
Major commanding corps,
and commissioned 2nd Lt.
Infantry; resigned on grad-
uation. Commissioned in
Regular Army, Medical Corps.

(Goes to * on next page)

V Craven Peyton had a son
Thomas West Peyton, an
attorney in New York City
~~He is, ^{probably} the one referred to in~~
~~Hayden, p. 570, as having~~

* He graduated at Columbia
University, New York, in 1877,
with the degree of L.L.B.

Some time in the 1880's,
he visited Thomas West
Peyton III, the attorney, in
Huntington. Since that time,
but little has been heard
of him, although it is
reputed he was most

successful, in his business.
Mr. John Peyton and Craven
Peyton were sons of Thomas
West Peyton I, and Sophia
Matilda (Dundas) Peyton.

~~V. Ellen Ona Peyton (see next page)~~

*Correct, says
the Registrar, in
letter to me, Nov.
1941

* (

)

✓
in which he now ranks as Captain.
Married, June, 1932 Ruth Austin.

They have one child:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton, born Oct 19, 1933.

6. Ellen Ora Peyton, born March 1, ¹⁸⁶³ 1862.

Married March 26, 1884, Henry
son of G. & L. Behring
E. Behring. She died recently

* -
note:
Her father on
was killed about
Jan. 3, 1863,
less than two
months before
her birth.

at Huntington (Nov. 1941?)

Her husband was killed,
in line of duty, while working
for the C. & O. R. R., within
about two weeks after their
marriage.

IV John Peyton, M. D., son of Capt. Thomas
West Peyton ~~II~~ and Sophia
Matilda (Hundas) Peyton. See
previous page. ✓

V. Craven Peyton, son of Capt. Thos. West
Peyton ~~II~~, and Sophia Matilda
(Hundas) Peyton. See previous
page.

*

✓

Barboursville, West Va.

October 27, 1952.

Dear Mr. Dundas:

1. It was William, not John Dirton, who married Mary Virginia Dundas.
2. I sent you the record of William and Mary V. Dirton. They had four children known to live. In Blue Sulphur Church cemetery there is a grave of Charles Dirton, their son, who died when a small boy, and beside it is another grave with no dates, but marked with initials indicating another son, who died at birth.
3. The John Merritt who died in 1855, was ^{not} a relative of yours. He was a brother of George Merritt (I), father of John Merritt, who married the two Dundas sisters.
4. There were two pioneer ~~Dirtons~~ ^{here}--Peter Dirton and William Dirton. Peter married Elizabeth Merritt, daughter of Capt. William and Margaret Merritt. Records give no indication of Peter Dirton's age. He died about 1816; his property was appraised then, but his wife lived about 40 years longer, dying about 1854, exact date not given. William Dirton (I) was a constable in 1814; hence, at least 21 years old. He did not marry until 1832, and there is no record showing he had any children. He may have left here.
5. I do not believe there is a record of the marriage here of your grand-parents, Henry ^I. Dundas and Margaret Dirton (correct spelling), but if my memory is

I visited Mrs. Mollie Sanford this morning, and found her sane but with a bad memory, yet cleared up some doubtful points.

correct they had one, or more children by 1830;
hence, she was not a daughter of William Dirton,
and I would say that she was most certainly a daughter
of Peter Dirton. If she were a sister (and there were
two others who married in, or about 1840), they would be
so much younger than Peter as to make that highly im-
probable.

Harrison Dirton was undoubtedly an illegiti-
mate son of Elizabeth Dirton, who became insane about
1850; and his old maid daughters, no doubt for this
reason wouldn't talk, and, as usual, didn't want their
ages known; but records show that

William Dirton (I) married Sarah Wintz, in
1832.

As to the two brothers of Edward Turley, I'll
write you later. I have struck a new source of re-
cords, but will have to have time to trace them.

These records on other Turleys, and your rela-
tion, open up a pretty big field, and it will take con-
siderable time.

Basil Turley's wife gave me all their records,
and Basil didn't know much, and wouldn't take time to
tell me what he did know. He was busy in his store.

I do not know where the Dirtons came from, but
feel that if I could visit some other counties, I'd get
other records of them.

Only one of Jonathan Turley's children is liv-
ing, but she is crazy. I'll visit her, but doubt get-
ting anything. I'll write when I get more.

Very truly,

F. B. Lambert

Barboursville, W.Va.

Oct. 20, 1952.

Dear Mr. Dundas:

In reply to your recent letter, the mistake you noted in the record of the child was made by the typist. He wrote 1879. It should have been 1874. The child died in 1876, hence was about 2 years old.

The John Merritt who died at about 80 yrs, &c. was the one who married the two Dundas sisters. I supposed he was buried with his first wife, Margaret, in the old Merritt cemetery, on Mud River, but recently I found his grave and that of his wife Frances, in a small family cemetery, on the back end of "Little" George Merritt's lot, on Center Street, in Barboursville, near the G.V. railroad, a branch of the C & O. which runs to Logan, W. Va. up Guyardotte River. It was near this railroad, about 200-300 feet, back of the "Little" George Merritt home. There are only three graves here. They were

John Merritt

1827--1908

Frances Merritt

D. 1873, at 37

(hence, B. 1836).

Garland Merritt, (whose record I sent you).

The above John Merritt was the father of "Little" George.

Now, you will note that the record, on the graves, does not exactly correspond to the death records at the Court House, but the discrepancy can easily be explained. In my many years searching records, I have found dozens of such errors. The clerks carelessly kept these records, for years, on scraps of paper, and

110
transcribed them later. Sometimes they never recorded them.

Many records after about 1854, were sent to Richmond until 1867. I had a letter a few days ago from the State Librarian there, saying that until these records could be treated, they were not in condition to be photostated. There are some such records, at Charleston.

The John Merritt above married two Dundas sisters. The census of 1850, shows exactly who he was. It is as follows:

Margaret Merritt 86 (wife of William, Sr.).

George Merritt 68 (married Levina Turley)

John Merritt 21

Margaret Merritt 21 (his wife).

I am not certain whether I sent you the children and descendants (except the "Little George" family), but if not, I'll do so, at once.

If anyt hing else is laacking, kindly notify me. The "Little George" Merritt home is now the Lions Club.

Very truly,

-- F. B. Lambert --

Barboursville, W. Va.,

Oct. 20, 1952.

Dear Mr. Dundas:

In reply to your recent letter the mistake you noted in the record of the child was made by the typist. He wrote 1879. It should have been 1874. The child died in 1876, hence was about 2 yrs. old.

The John Merrill who died at about 80 yrs. +, was the one who married the two Dundas sisters. I supposed he was buried with his first wife, Margaret, in the old Merrill cemetery, on Mud River, but recently I found his grave and that of his wife Frances, in a small family cemetery, on the back end of "Little" George Merrill's lot, on Center Street, in Barboursville, near the G. V. railroad, a branch of the ~~Guyandotte~~ ^{G. C. & O.} which runs to Logan, W. Va., up Guyandotte river. It is near this railroad, about 200-300 feet, back of the "Little" Merrill's.

118

2

There are only three graves
here. They were

John Merrill
1827 - 1908

Frances Merrill
d. 1873, at 37
(niece, b. 1836)

Garland Merrill (whose
record I sent you.

The above John Merrill was
the father of "Little" George.

Now, you will note that
the record, on the graves, does
not exactly correspond to the
death records at the Court House,
but the discrepancy can easily
be explained. In my many years
searching records, I have found
dozens of such errors. The clerks
carelessly kept these records, for
years, on scraps of paper, and
transcribed them later. Sometimes
they never recorded them.

3.

many records after about 1854,
were sent to Richmond till 1867.
I had a letter a few days ago
from the State Librarian there, say-
ing, that until these records could
be treated, they were not in con-
dition to be photostated. There
are some such records, at Charles-
ton.

The John Merrill above mar-
ried two Dundas sisters. The
Census of 1850, shows exactly
who he was. It is as follows:

Margaret Merrill 86 (wife of
William Sr.)

George Merrill 68
(m. Leona Turley)

John Merrill 21

Margaret " 21 (his wife)

I am not certain whether I sent
you the children and descendants
(except the "Little George" family), but
~~if~~ if not, I'll do so, at once.

(Over)

If anything else is lacking,
kindly notify me. The "Little" George
Merrill home is now the Lions Club.
Very truly,

6-3 Hattie Merrill

7-3 Thomas Merrill

m. Jennie Bloss

8-3 Emily Merrill

m. James Adams.

9-3 Nannie Merrill

m. John H. Holroyd

b. About 1840

d. 1908

Two children

10. Martha Merrill

m. Marshall Stewart.

← ~~2-5~~²⁻⁴ Julia Andra Mc Ginnis
b. March 15, 1907

m. Richard Arnette
Dunkley b.

They have five
Children:

1-5 Ella Jean Dunkley,
b. Dec. 13, 1927.

m. Benj. Adorick

1-5 Benny Adorick Jr.
b. May, 1947

2-5 ~~2-5~~ Richard Wade
Adorick
b.

Single. In service

3-5 ~~3-5~~ Judith Ann Adorick
b.

m. Randy Cook,
of Huntington

4-5 ~~4-5~~ James Mack Dunkley
Single
b.

5-5

125
3-4
~~3-4~~ Elizabeth Mc Ginnis

b. March 18, 1910

m. Frank Miros,

b. Nov. 29, 1909.

Phone 32268, Huntington

They have three children.

1-5 Frank Warren Miros

b. Aug. 24, 1933

2-5 Nancy Lou Miros

b. Feb. 6, 1936

3-5 Teresa Miros,

b. Jan. 21, 1942

4-4
~~4-4~~ Woodrow Wilson Mc Ginnis

b. Jan. 11, 1913

not married.

5-4
~~5-4~~ Oellie Belle Mc Ginnis

m. Ralph Pelrie of
Barboursville. He is
now in the navy.
They have no children.

and are divorced. He is now in the navy, and is considered a perfect gentleman. The separation was caused, by the fact, that they were incompatible.

6-4 Earl Peyton McGinnis
b. Nov. 16, 1919

m. Louise Adkins
b.
They live in Detroit, Michigan. He works in the composing room of the Detroit Free Press. They have three daughters:

1-3 Bora Sue McGinnis
b. June 12, 1940

2-5 Ferna Louise McGinnis
b. Feb. 7, 1944

3-5 Ellie Belle McGinnis
b. Nov. 16, 1946

Married Ralph Petrie, of Barboursville. He is now in the navy. They have no children, and are divorced. He is now in the navy, and is considered a perfect gentleman. The separation was caused by the fact that they were incompatible.

6-4 Earl Peyton McGinnis,

Born Nov.16, 1919.

Married Louise Adkins, born

They live in Detroit, Michigan. He works in the composing room of the Detroit Free Press. They have three daughters:

1-5 Cora Sue McGinnis,

Born June 12, 1940.

2-5. Virna Louise McGinnis,

Born Feb.7, 1944.

3-5 Ollie Belle McGinnis,

Born Nov.16, 1946.

4-3 Carrie Peyton,

Born Nov.7, 1882, in St.Albans, W.Va.

Died (1946)?.

Married Ralph Petrie, of Barboursville. He is now in the navy. They have no children, and are divorced. He is now in the navy, and is considered a perfect gentleman. The separation was caused by the fact that they were incompatible.

6-4 Earl Peyton McGinnis,

Born Nov.16, 1919.

Married Louise Adkins, born

They live in Detroit, Michigan. He works in the composing room of the Detroit Free Press. They have three daughters:

1-5 Core Sue McGinnis,

Born June 12, 1940.

2-5. Virna Louise McGinnis,

Born Feb.7, 1944.

3-5 Ollie Belle McGinnis,

Born Nov.16, 1946.

4-3 Carrie Peyton,

Born Nov.7, 1882, in St.Albans, W.Va.

Died

(1946)?.

~~IV~~⁴⁻³ Carrie Peyton

b. Nov. 7, 1882, in
St. Albans, W. Va.

d.

(1946?)

m. Lucy Leist, daughter of
b. Jan. 10, 1873, dau. Valentine
Valentine Leist, of Barbours-
ville, W. Va. She had
previously married Warren
Martin, son of Rev. Martin
of Barboursville, and had
a son Bernard Martin,
of Huntington

~~IV~~⁵⁻²

Ora Peyton

b. Sept. 9, 1887

m. Harry Hancock of
Pittsburg, Pa. They now
live at 621 Jackson St.,
East Liverpool, Ohio. He
was her fifth husband

~~VII~~ ^{6-31/} Earl Thomas Peyton
b. May 28, 1885, at
St. Albans, W. Va.

m. Ella Mae Payne,
Sept. 14, 1888; dau.
of Floyd and Lidea
Mullens Payne. They
live at 1925, Mad-
ison Avenue, Hunt-
ington He is re-
tired from the
Appalachian Electric
Power Company.

No children.

Phone 23153.

¹⁷⁻³
~~VII~~ Craven Peyton
b. May 25, 1881,
Choked to death, on
a peanut in 1882.

⁸⁻³
~~VIII~~ Dewey Peyton
b. Aug. 18, 1898
d. Feb 9, 1902.

104

Cabell County Census of 1950.

965-- John Turley, 65. Farmer \$800.00 Born Virginia,

Sarah Turley, 50,

Jonathan Turley, 25. Sawyer,

Isaiah Turley, 20, farmer.

Joseph Turley 11,

Rachel Turley, 30,

Eliza Turley, 21,

Sarah Turley, 18,

Martha Turley, 15.

Elijah Turley, 27,

Agnes Turley, 24.

The above are all the descendants of James Turley that are shown in the Cabell Co. Census of 1850. We should have the 1860 and the 1870 censuses.

132

↑ Rouse, to leave room at bottom

Here are the descendants of Thomas West Peyton, so far as I have been able to get them:

1. Thomas West Peyton,

B. Aug. 13, 1891,

D. Sept. 19, 1949

Married first, ^{Gay Zenith} Gayze~~in~~ith, ^{Vaughan} daughter of Arthur

Loving and Sarah Polina (Rippetoe) ^{Vaughan}. No issue.

Married second, Christine ^{King} Dingess, born Sept. 3, 1916,

daughter of Melvin C. and Eva Marshall Purcell, of Williamson, W. Va. She is now Mrs. Raymond D. Ham-
~~Williamston~~mond. They were married Octo-
ber 11 1947, at Williamson, W. Va.

2. Col Albert Harvey Peyton. Two children: ➡➡➡➡

1. Virginia Tyler Peyton, born May 19, 1920.

Married Chambers. No children.

2. Sarah West Peyton. born ——— ^{She is 2nd dau of Col. Albert}

Married first, Leslie Smith. He was killed after world war II, in the explosion of a plane, at Dayton, Ohio. He was a pilot. No children.

Married second, at San Antonio, Texas. No issue.

3. John Thornburg Peyton,

Born March 2, 1897.

Married Bertha Mae Ullman, of Catlettsburg, Ky. Two children:

1. Thornburg Arthur Peyton. Died in ~~the~~ ^{infancy} infancy, at Tampa, Florida.

2. John Thomas Peyton:

Born Feb. 6, 1923. Married ^{Joan} Thomas White.

^{One son} Thomas Peyton Jr.,

131
John Thomas Peyton, Jr.

Born May 10, 1949

4. Col. Robert Edwin Peyton:

Born Dec. 24, 1901,

Married June 1932, Ruth Austin. Born

Children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton,

Born Oct. 19, 1932. Single.

A student at William & Mary College, Williamsburg, Va.

2. Mary Peyton,

Student at William and Mary college.

(I wrote these girls at Williamsburg, and their father at San Antonio, but received no reply, to either letter).

Cabell County Census of 1850.

965-- John Turley, 65. Farmer \$800.00. Born Virginia.

Sarah " 50,

Jonathan Turley, 25. Sawyer,

Isaiah Turley 20, Farmer.

Joseph " 11,

Rachel " 20,

Eliza " 21,

Sarah " 18,

Martha " 15,

Eliza Turley 27,

Agnes Turley 21.

The above are all the descendants of James Turley that are shown in the Cabell Co. Census of 1850. We should have the 1860 and the 1870 censuses.

4. Cpl. Robert Edwin Peyton:

Born Dec. 24, 1901.

Married June, ¹⁹³²~~1932~~, Ruth Austin. Born

Children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton,

Born Oct. 19, 1933. Single. A student at

William and Mary College, *Williamsburg, Va*

(I wrote these girls at Williamsburg, and their father at San Antonio, but received no reply to either letter).

*You left out Mary Peyton,
sister of Ruth Margaret Peyton above.*

(I want to change the last 3 lines
of this letter, so stop there, and call
me, and I will dictate what I want.)
Barboursville, W. Va.,

Oct. 11, 1952.

Dear Mr. Dundas: ~ I am herewith
sending you some notes on one
branch of the Turley family that of
Joseph Turley. I have so far not
been able to do much with the
descendants of Jonathan Turley, and
little with that of Elijah Turley.

I will now be glad to hear
from you on any problems which
I can give further help on. I
fear I may not be able to give
much more, as you told me to
leave off the Sedingers and Loves.

I have considerable data on
Clay Mc Simis and his descendants.
He married in the Sedinger family,
and his descendants are rather nu-
merous and fairly important, as he
came from a more distinguished
family than the Sedingers. I will,
at any rate, send you any further
notes which I may discover, and think
may be of use to you. I had forgotten -
I will send you ^{another} Peyton family.
I am awaiting further. F. B. Lambert

Barboursville, W. Va. Oct. 11, 1952.

Dear Mr. Dundas:

I am herewith sending you some notes on one branch of the Turley family, that of Joseph Turley. I have so far, not been able to do much with the descendants of Jonathan Turley, and but little with that of Elijah Turley.

I will now be glad to hear from you on any problems on which I can give further help. I fear I may not be able to give much more, as you told me to leave off the Sedingers and Loves.

I have considerable data on Clay McGinnis and his descendants. He married into the Sedinger family, and his descendants are rather numerous and fairly important, as he came from a more distinguished family than the Sedingers.

I will, at any rate, send you any further notes which I may discover, and think may be of use to you. I had forgotten another Peyton family, but will send them to you as soon as I get some further information, which I hope to get in the near future.

Very truly yours,

F. B. Lambert

*Kindly inform me if you know
of any thing else which I should
hunt up*

Sent Mr. Benj. A. Dundas
Oct. 11, 1952

Notes

Thomas Peyton, father of Thomas E. Peyton was a brother of Francis W. Peyton, father of "Percy" Peyton and others. I have already sent the family of Francis W. Peyton, and will send that of Thomas Peyton, as soon as I can get some information which I hope to have soon.

A flour and grist mill was built at an early day over the "Great Falls" of Mud River, which are east, or up the river a mile or two from Mud River Baptist Church. John Dundas was the builder of this mill, and its first owner. Later, it was purchased by David Harshbarger, and still later, it passed into the hands of Greenville Harrison, who lived on the north or opposite side of Mud River, from the church.

Thomas Dundas, who was never married, is said to have owned the first buggy that was ever used in this section.

The Turleys

John Turley, son of James and Esther Turley was born July 12, 1785. He m. Palsy — who was born Sept. 27, 1787. This is from a Turley Bible record, now owned by Basil L. Turley of Ona, W. Va. Evidently, John Turley must have married twice, as this record also shows that John Turley's wife was Sarah Turley (maiden name of either wife not available here)

Joseph Turley and Jonathan Turley were brothers. Levina Turley who married George Merrill, was probably a daughter of ^{James} ~~John~~ and Esther ~~Palsy~~ Turley. ~~hence, a half sister of Joseph and Jonathan Turley.~~

Joseph Turley married Anna Maria Dundas, July 7, 1861, dau. of John and Ann Dundas. He was a son of

The children of Joseph and Anna Maria

← ~~Their children were:~~
Dundas Turley were:

1-2 Edward Turley

b. June 14, 1862

d. Oct. 25, 1918

2-2 Samuel Turley, twin of Edward

b. June 14, 1862.

3-2 Charles Turley

b. May 30, 1865.

4-2 Alonzo Dundas Turley

b. Nov. 18, 1873.

1-2 Edward Turley, Son of Joseph and Anna Maria,

b. June 14, 1862

d. Oct. 25, 1918

m. Ana Alberta Jessen

b. Jan 29, 1869

d. Feb. 30, 1941

Mrs. Ana Turley taught
the women's Bible Class, for
many years, at the Mud River
Baptist Church.

Their children were:

1-3. Basil Love Turley
b. Feb. 23, 1891

m. Garnette Baumgardner
daugh. of Henry J. Baumgardner,
Oct. 4, 1916. She
was b. April 21, 1892.

Their children:

1-4. Wanda Jane Turley
b. Sept. 18, 1922,

m. Wm. E. Platt,
of Arizona. He
b. April 14, 1922,

Son of Mr. and
Mrs. W. E. Platt Sr.
of Coolidge, Arizona.

Both Wanda and
Mr. Platt grad-
uated, at the
University of Arizona.

He is a lawyer
there. They have
two sons:

1-5. Richard Turley Platt
b. Sept. 19, 1950

2-5. James Douglas Platt
b. Sept. 19, 1950,

Twins.

159
2-2 Cynthia Turley (Sister of Basil)
b. Feb. 15, 1897

m. Samuel Spencer Stinson
May 26, 1917.
b. Oct. 20, 1895. He
was from Virginia.

Two children:

1-3. Samuel Turley Stinson
b. July 5, 1918

m. Pat Chaney of
Culloden, W. Va. a
son:

Spencer Chaney
b. May 24, 1950.

1-4 Spencer Chaney
b. May 24, 1950
2-3. Eva Frances Stinson
b. Sept. 26, 1930

m. Harold Gadd
of Charleston, W. Va.
One daughter

1-4 Rena Gadd,
b. Sept. 22, 1957

They live in
Charleston, W. Va.

Elijah Turley, son of John and Sarah Turley
b. May 7, 1823
d. Feb. 29, 1884
m. Agnes Dundas

Children:

Sophia Turley,
b. Jan. 14, 1852
d. April 17, 1860

Infant son, d. Jan. 18, 1850

Three Sisters { John Dundas
m. Ann Merrill
Eliza Ann Dundas
m. John Turley, son of ?
Anna Maria Dundas
m. Joseph Turley, son of John
and Sarah Turley,
July 7, 1861.
Agnes Dundas
m. Elijah Turley - son of John and
Sarah & Mr. Sons of Dundas Turley

It has been claimed that the three Dundas sisters married three Turley brothers. Now, this may be true, but records here do not seem to prove the statement. The Bible Records of Basil Turley, definitely show that John Turley who married Sarah — was a son of the Revolutionary soldier, James Turley who married Esther. They also show that Jonathan Turley (No. 1) was a brother of the above John Turley.

This John Turley was born July 12, 1785.

His brother, Jonathan Turley was born Feb. 1, 1793.

Now, Jonathan Turley of a later generation was born Sept. 17, 1825, and married Eliza Ann Dundas, Nov. 16, 1852.

(Stop here)

1-1. Thomas Dundas of Fudge Creek, was a son of Henry Thompson and Margaret Dundas.

He married Martha Turley, daughter of John and Sarah Turley, Dec. 16, 1854. She was born Dec. 13, 1836, (1836) and died April 4, 1900, at 63 years, 4 mos. and 14 days.

They had but two children: Mary Virginia Dundas and William I. Dundas.

1-2. Mary Virginia Dundas
b. d.

m. Charles Russell Meyer,
Jan. 29, 1880.

They had seven children:

1-3. Thomas Dundas Meyer,

b. June 10, 1881

m. Catherine —

One son, Paul Meyer, b.

Not married.

Mr. Meyer and his wife
are separated, but live
near each other, on
the north side of Mud
River, about two or three
miles up - not far
below Ona, W. Va.

+ 2-2. Martha Armenia Meyer.

b. Oct. 21, 1883

d. Jan. 18, 1918

m. 1. James P. Miller of
Warren, Ohio. No children.

He m. 2. Irene Gillilan
of Greenbrier Co., W. Va.,
Dec. 29, 1894, and has
three children:

3-2 Fred George Meyer

b. Sept. 11, 1893

d. Aug. 7, 1921

m. Margaret ———,
of North Carolina, at
Lynchburg, Va. He was
a Taylor and died,
in Huntington, W. Va.

4-2. Agnes Dundas Meyer

b. Aug. 15, 1889

d. July 12, 1897, at 7
years and 10 months.

5-2. Hazel Virginia Meyer

b. April 19, 1893.

m. Rolla Brian of
Detroit, Michigan.

Their present address
is 611, Horatio Ave.,
Tampa, Florida. No
issue.

6-2. Russell Charles Meyer

b. May 14, 1896

m. Eva Bernice Withrow
sister of Squire George
Withrow, who came
here from Alderson, W. Va.

7-2 Esker Joseph Meyer
b. May 2, 1900
d. Aug. 19, 1920.
Not married

2-1 William Isaiah ^{Wmudas} Meyer ("Coon")
b. April 4, 1868, on Fudge
Creek.

d. Jan. 28, 1937, in his
father's home, on Eighteenth
Street Huntington, W. Va.

m. Anna Grove, sister
of Herman P. Grove of
Barboursville.

Both are buried in
the new cemetery at Mud
River Baptist of Blue Sul-
phur. They had eight
children:

1-2. Thomas William Wmudas
b. May 5, 1891
d. Oct. 24, 1915

He died single of
tuberculosis.

2-2. Alva E. Dundas

b. May 18, 1893

m. Robena Wallon

b. Feb. 17, 1900

She was a daughter
of Simon P. and Mattie
Sennett Walton of
Ashland, Kentucky. They
were married, in
1918. They have two

Sons:

1-3. Robert Franklin Dundas

b. Dec. 14, 1920.

m. Lillian Henney,

b. Oct. 4, 1918

No children.

They live at 216,
Oakland Drive, Hunt-
ington. Robert grad-
uated in Marshall
College.

(3-2)

~~3-2~~ 2-3 Paul Dundas →

b. June 29, 1903.

m. Betty Johnson

They have one daugh-
ter.

They live at 1720, Twelfth
Avenue, Huntington

~~4-2~~ 3-2. Goldie Estelle Lundas
b. May 26, 1895

m. James B. Cook, of
Washington, D.C., April 4,
1917. They have three
children:

1-3. Melva E. Cook.

b.

m. Harvey Hamps.

← They live in Charles-
← ton, W. Va.

2-3. Lorian Therol Cook

b.

m. Violet Mitchell

b.

One son:

1-4. Lorian T. Cook, Jr.
5 years old.
(1952)

Mr. Cook is a grad-
uate of Marshall
College, at Hunt-
ington. The family
now lives at 1720

(5-2)

F-2. Earl C. Dundas

b. March 5, 1897

m. 1 Georgia Stewart,

Address 14380 Cruse,
Detroit 27,
Michigan.

One daughter:

1-3. Helen ~~Pittman~~ Dundas
~~They~~ m. Junior Pittman

They live in California.

m. 2. Augusta Hogan of
Roanoke, Virginia

b.

d. Nov. 2, 1942

One daughter:

1-3. Betty Dundas

m. Herman Rye
13578, Hayden St.,
Detroit, Mich.

m. 3. Emma Toley.

No children.

They live at Detroit.

9-2. Owen Lesley Dundas

b. Aug. 11, 1907.

d. Oct. 30, 1937.

m. Verdie Phelps,
August 11, 1934, of Scott
Depot.

Two sons, Twins:

1-3. Charles Owen Dundas,
b. July 27, 1935.

23. Carlton Lesley Dundas,
b. July 27, 1935

Mrs. Owen Phelps Dundas

m. 2. Charles V. Siltner.

No children.

They live at 369,
West District, Tucson,
Arizona.

15
Thomas Dundas of Fudge Creek, was a son of Henry Thompson and Margaret Dundas.

He married Martha Turley, daughter of John and Sarah Turley, Dec.16,1854. She was born Dec.13, 1836, and died April 4, 1900, at 63 years, 4 mos. and 14 days.

They had but two children: Margaret Virginia Dundas and William I. Dundas.

1-2 Mary Virginia Dundas,

b.

d.

Married Charles Russell Meyer, Jan. 29, 1880. They had seven children:

1-3 Thomas Dundas Meyer,

→ move to right.

b. June 10, 1881

d.

Married Catherine _____. One son, Paul Meyer, born

Not married.

Mr. Meyer and his wife are separated, but live near each other, on the north side of Mud River, about two or three miles, up--
below
not far from Ona, W. Va.

2-2. Martha Hermania Meyer,

b. Oct. 21, 1883. d. Jan.18, 1918.

Married first James P. Miller, of Warren, Ohio. No children. He married second, Irene Gillilan, of Greenbrier Co., W.Va., Dec.29, 1894, and has three children

3-2 Fred George Meyer,

b. Sept. 11, 1893. d. Aug. 7, 1921.

Married Margaret _____ of North Carolina, at Lynchburg, Va. He was a Taylor, and died in Huntington, W.Va. No issue. *(I am trying to get the m. record.)*

~~2~~ /

151
4-2. Agnes Dundas Meyer,

b. Aug. 15, 1889; d. July 12, 1897, at 7 years and 10 months.

5-2 Hazel Virginia Meyers,

B. April 19, 1893.

Married Rolla Brian, of Detroit, Michigan. Their present address is 611, Horatio Ave., Tampa, Florida. No issue.

6-2. Russell Charles Meyer

b. May 14, 1896.

Married Eva Bernice Withrow, sister of Squire George Withrow, who came here from Alderson, W Va.

7-2 Esker Joseph Meyer,

b. May 2, 1900. d. Aug. 19, 1920.

Not married.

← 2-1 William Isaiah ^{Dundas} Meyer ("Coon"), (2nd son of

b. April 4, 1868, on Fudge Creek.

d. Jan. 28, 1937, in his father's home, on Eighteenth Street, Huntington, W.Va.

Married Anna Grove, sister of Herman P. Grove, of Barboursville.

Both are buried, in the new cemetery, at Mud River Baptist, of Blue Sulphur. They had eight children:

1-2. Thomas William Dundas,

b. May 5, 1891. D. Oct. 24, 1915.

He died single, of tuberculosis.

2-2 Alva E. Dundas, →

b. May 18, 1893.

Married Robena Walton, who was born

Feb. 17, 1900.

~~3~~- 2.

162
2-3 Dewey Percell Peyton ("Percy")

Born March 14, 1921. Twin to Louie Pearl Peyton.
Married Mrs. Florence Ferguson. She had two children by a former marriage.

3-3. Ruby Mae Peyton,

Born Oct. 19, 1921. Married Eugene Coleman, who was born Feb. 5, 1925.

They live at 1816 Jefferson Avenue. Mr. Coleman works for the Zenith Optical Co.

4-3 Lou. Ella Peyton,

Born Jan. 31, 1879.

Died June 25, 1927.

Married Clay Warren McGinnis, born Sept. 25, 1872. Mr. McGinnis lives at 111 Moore Road, near S. High Street, Guyandotte, W. Va. Telephone 31742, in name of Mrs. Ollie Belle Petrie. They had four sons and two daughters:

1-4. Georgia Frances McGinnis,

Born Sept. 8, 1905.

Married George G. Powell. They live on Depot St., Guyandotte. Telephone 7437. They have two daughters:

1-5 Alice Leigh Powell,

Born April 24, 1936.

2-5 Sarah Virginia Powell,

Born April 27, 1934.

3-5 Robert Lee Powell,

Born July 1941.

2-4 Julia Aufra McGinnis,

Born March 15, 1907.

150

She was a daughter of Simon P. and Mattie Sennett Walton, of Ashland, Kentucky. They were married in 1918. They have two sons:

1-3. Robert Franklin Dundas, born Dec. 14, 1920.

Married Lillian Denney, who was born Oct. 4, 1918. No children.

They live at 216, Oakland Drive, Huntington. Robert graduated in Marshall College.

2-3 Paul Dundas, b. June 29, 1903. Married Betty Johnson.

They have one daughter. They live at 1720, Twelvth Avenue, Huntington.

← 3-2 Goldie Estelle Dundas, born May 26, 1895.

Married James B. Cook, of Washington, D.C. April 4, 1917. They have three children:

Melva E. Cook, b.
1-3. ~~Born, and married~~ Harvey Hems.
m. Harvey Cook
They live in Charleston, W. Va.

move to right → 2-3. Dorian Theral Cook, ~~born, married Violet Mitchell, who~~
m. Violet Mitchell
was born One son

1-4 Dorian T. Cook, Jr. 5 years old (1952).

Mr. Cook is a graduate of Marshall College, at Huntington. The family now live at Athalia, O.

← 4-2 Earl C. Dundas, born March 5, 1897.

Married, first, Georgia Stewart. His address: 14380 Cruse, Detroit 27, Michigan. Has one daughter,

Helen Dundas, who married Junior Pittman, and they live in California.

m. 2.
~~Married, second,~~ Augusta Hogan, of Roanoke, Virginia, b.

d. Nov. 2, 1942. One daughter

1-3 Betty Dundas, married Herman Rye, 13578, Hayden →

St., Detroit, Mich.

Married third, Emma Toley. No children. They live in Detroit.

5-2. Elizabeth M. Dundas, born March 19, 1889.

Married Rollie Mitchell, of Huntington, in 1915. She divorced him. A daughter, unnamed, died at birth.

She married, second, Clifford Penix, Feb. 6, 1949, in Ashland, Main Street, Westwood, Ashland, Ky.

6-2 Boyd H. Dundas, born April 20, 1903.

Married Hazel Spears, Oct. 4, 1935, in Huntington. No children.

7-2 Viva E. Dundas, born Feb. 24, 1905.

Married Charles Corydon Lyne, June 19, 1929, who was born Nov. 11, 1896, died Jan. 2, 1933. He was from Morgan County, Ohio, the son of Dr. Thomas Jefferson Lyne, and wife, Minta Moore Lyne. No children.

8-2. Owen Lesley Dundas, b. Aug. 11, 1907; d. Oct. 30, 1937.

Married Verdie Phelps, August 11, 1934, of Scott Depot.

They had two sons, twins:

1-3 Charles Owen Dundas, b. July 27, 1935

2-3. Carlton Lesley Dundas, born July 27, 1935.

Mrs. Owen Phelps Dundas married, second, Charles V. Stiltner, and ~~no~~ children. They live at 369, West District, Tucson, Arizona.

THE JOHNSTON FAMILY.

Napoleon Bonaparte Johnston,

Born Sept. 4, 1841.

Died May 9, 1909. was a son of Samuel W. and Rebecca Martin Johnston. He married Sarah Everett Dundas, who was born May 4, 1845, and died Oct. 22, 1922. She was a daughter of John and Ann Merritt Dundas.

They had seven children:

1-2. Frank Eugene Johnston, born Jan. 2, 1865. Was never married. Died Oct. 11, 1934, at 69 Yrs, 9 mos. and 9 days.

2-2. Harvey W. Johnston,

Born Nov. 13, 1868,

Died Feb. 27, 1942.

Married Kathleen Kelly, of Steuben Co., Indiana.

3-2. James Owen Johnston,

Born May 3, 1871.

Married Juliet (Etta) Strachn, of Hunting-

ton, Feb. 28, 1901. She is dead. A daughter,

Alice Everett Johnston, died at 7 mos. in

1902. Address him at 456 Washington Avenue,

Huntington, W. Va.

4-2 Anna May Johnston,

Born May 8, 1879, 1874

Died June 20, 1876.

5-2 Mary Rebecca Johnston,

Born Aug. 23, 1877.

Married Silas E. Saunders. He died, leaving

no children. He served 26 years in the regular army. He died April 23, 1939.

15
His wife is living at 456 Washington Ave., Huntington.

6-2 Thomas Sidney Johnston,

Born March 5, 1882. He is a painter and Maintenance of Way man, for the C & O. Railroad Company. He was never married. Lives at 456, Washington Ave., Huntington.

4-2 Ella M. Johnston,

Born June 19, 1888.

Married John W. Falwell, of Virginia.

A daughter, Reba Louise Falwell married Thomas T. Rees, a coal operator, at Tioga, W.Va. but a resident of Richmond, Va. One daughter, Carole Jane Rees, Richmond, Va.

150

THE DUNDAS BIBLE.

Lucy Dundas had an old Bible, published in 1715. Evidently, this Bible came down through her branch of the Dundas family. Her sister married Napoleon B. Johnston, and she spent the last few years of her life at the Johnston residence; and when she died, they kept it. There are not many records in it, but here is a copy of what is in it:

"Agnes Hepburn was born Aug. 19, 1770, at 1/2 one o'clock, midday, in Cragston Parish of Gavan, two miles from Glasgow, her book, and died the 24th of May, 1820, at five o'clock, in the afternoon, in the Town of Alexandria, District of Columbia.

"Wednesday, the 21st of June, 178 ? (worn out), at seven o'clock James Hepburn Dundas was born in the Town of Alexandria, and State of Virginia".

"Thursday morning, at nine o'clock, being the 14th February, 1788, Nancy Moore Dundas was born, in the Town of Alexandria".

"Monday morning 10 o'clock the 6th of July, 1789 _____
Dundas was born in the Town of Alexandria".

"Sophia Matilda Dundas born in the Town of Alexandria, at 4 o'clock, in the morning of the 24th February, 1791".

The Dundas Bible

Lucy Dundas had an old Bible, published in 1715; Evidently, this Bible came down through her branch of the Dundas ^{family} ~~Bible~~. Her sister married Napoleon B. Johnston, and she spent the last few years ^{of her life} at the Johnston residence, and when she died, they kept it. There are not many records in it, but here is a copy of what is in it:

"Agnes Hepburn was born Oct. 19th, 1770, at a $\frac{1}{2}$ one o' clock mid day, in Cragston Parish of Gavan 2 miles from Glasgow, her book, and died the 24th of May, 1820, at five o' clock, in the afternoon, in the Town of Alexandria district of Columbia."

"Wednesday the 21st of June
1788 — ? (worn out), at seven o'clock
James Hepburn Dundas was born,
in the town of Alexandria,
and State of Virginia."

"Thursday morning, at nine
o'clock being the 14th February
1788, Nancy Moore Dundas was
born, in the town of Alexandria"

"Monday morning 10 o'clock
the 6th July 1789 — (Torn)
Dundas was born in the Town
of Alexandria"

"Sophia Milda Dundas born
in the town of Alexandria at
four o'clock, in the morning of
the 24th February 1791"

154

MISTAKES IN DUNDAS BOOK.

Page 79, Paragraph 2 -- There were earlier settlers here, Thomas Buffington, Jeremiah Ward, &c. The Dundases did not own land to the Big Sandy river, although they owned large boundaries around One, on Mud River.

Last Paragraph--Mud River gets muddy at almost every rain. The early settlers were right.

160

There is no deed in Cabell County, or anywhere else, so far as I know, showing when the Dundases came to Cabell County, but they were here quite early, for Mud River Baptist church was established not later than 1807, but the first deed to the church was made by Eliza Dundas, and stated in a later deed by John Thomas and Henry T. Dundas, in 1821. This deed stated that the first deed (by Eliza Dundas) was lost. It was for one acre of ground and included the burying ground, still in use, but recently enlarged, but, I believe, privately owned.

There were earlier settlers than the Dundases. The McComases were here as early as 1799, as was also Thomas Buffington, Jeremiah Ward, and William Merritt, who founded the first water mill on Mud River, in 1801.

The first Mud River Baptist church was made of logs. Its people came from all parts of Cabell County, as it was the only Baptist Church here, in that early day.

16

third

Here are the descendants of Thomas West Peyton^{III}, so far as I have been able to get them:

1. Thomas West Peyton,

B. Aug. 13, 1891,

D. Sept. 19, 1949.

Married first, Gay Zenith Vaughn, daughter of Arthur Loving and Sarah Polina (Rippetoe) Vaughn. No issue.

Married second, Christine Dingus, born Sept. 3, 1916, daughter of Melvin C. and Eva Marshall Purcell, of Williamson, W.Va. She is now Mrs. Raymond D. Hammond. They were married October 11, 1947, at Williamson, W.Va.

2. Col. Albert Harvey Peyton. Two children:

1. Virginia Tyler Peyton, born May 19, 1920.

Married Chambers. No children.

2. Sarah West Peyton, born _____ She is second daughter of Col. Albert.

Married first, Leslie Smith. He was killed after World war II, in the explosion of a plane, at Dayton, Ohio. He was a pilot. No children.

Married second, at San Antonio, Texas. No issue.

← 3. John Thornburg Peyton,

Born March 2, 1897.

Married Bertha Mae Ullman, of Catlettsburg, Ky. Two children:

1. Thornburg Arthur Peyton. Died in infancy, at Tampa, Florida.

2. John Thomas Peyton:

Born Feb. 6, 1923. Married Joan White. One son, Thomas Peyton, Jr., b. May 10, 1949.

166
Here are the descendants of Thomas West Peyton, so far as I have been able to get them:

1. Thomas West Peyton,

B. Aug. 13, 1891,

D. Sept. 19, 1949.

Married first, Gayzeinith Vaughan, daughter of Arthr Loving and Sarah Polina (Rippetoe) Vaughan. No issue.

Married second, Christine Dingess, born Sept. 3, 1916,

daughter of Melvin C. and Eva Marshall Purcell, of Williamson, W. Va. She is now Mrs. Raymond D. Ham-
~~Williamston~~mond. They were married Octo-
ber 11 1947, at Williamson, W. Va.

2. Col Albert Harvey Peyton. Two children:

1. Virginia Tyler Peyton, born May 19, 1920.

Married . Chambers. No children.

3. Sarah West Peyton. born

Married first, Leslie Smith. He was killed after world war II, in the explosion of a plane, at Dayton, Ohio. He was a pilot. No children.

Married second, at San Antonio, Texas. No issue.

3. John Thornburg Peyton,

Born March 2, 1897.

Married Bertha Mae Ullman, of Catlettsburg, Ky. Two children:

1. Thornburg Arthur Peyton. Died in the infantry, at Tampa, Florida.

2. John Thomas Peyton:

Born Feb. 6, 1923. Married Thomas White.

162
John Thomas Peyton, Jr.

Born May 10, 1949

4. Col. Robert Edwin Peyton:

Born Dec. 24, 1901,

Married June 1932, Ruth Auston. Born

Children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton,

Born Oct. 19, 1933. Single.

A student at William & Mary College, Williamsburg, Va.

2. Mary Peyton,

Student at William and Mary college.

(I wrote these girls at Williamsburg, and their father
at San Antonio, but received no reply to either let-
ter).

Cabell County Census of 1850.

965-- John Turley, 65. Farmer \$200.00. Born Virginia.

Sarah " 50,

Jonathan Turley, 25. Sawyer,

Isaiah Turley 20, Farmer.

Joseph " 11,

Rachel " 30,

Eliza " 21,

Sarah " 18,

Martha " 15,

Eliza Turley 27,

Agnes Turley 21.

The above are all the descendants of James Turley that are
shown in the Cabell Co. Census of 1850. We should have the 1860 and
the 1870 censuses. -2-

4. Cdl. Robert Edwin Peyton:

Born Dec.24, 1901.

Married June, 1952, Ruth Austin. Born

Children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton,

Born Oct. 19, 1933. Single. A student at

William and Mary College.

(I wrote these girls at Williamsburg, and their father at San Antonio, but received no reply to either letter).

4. Col. Robert Edwin Peyton,

Born Dec.24, 1901,

Married June, 1932, Ruth Austin, born

Children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton

b. Oct. 19, 1933.

Single. A student at William and Mary

College, Williamsburg, Va.

2. Mary Peyton.

Student at William and Mary college.

(I wrote these girls at Williamsburg, and their father at San)

(Antonio, but received no reply to either letter).

Here are the descendants of Thomas West
Peyton III, so far as I have been able to get them

#. Thomas West Peyton IV

b. Aug. 13, 1891.

d. Sept. 19, 1949.

m. 1 Gay^{de} Ruth Vaughan, b.
daughter of Arthur Loving
and Sarah Polina (Ripplée)
Vaughan. No issue

m. 2. Christine ^{Linguis} ~~Ling~~ ^{ells}

b. Sept. 3, 1916,
daughter of Melvin C.
and Eva Marshall
Purcell, of William-
son, W. Va.

She is now Mrs. Ray-
mond D. Hammond.

They were married
Oct. 11, 1947, at William-
son, W. Va.

2. Col. Albert Hovey Peyton

Two children:

1. Virginia Tyler Peyton

b. May 19, 1920.

m. ——— Chambers

No children

2. Sarah West Peyton

b.

m. 1 Leslie Smith.

He was killed after World War II, in the explosion of a plane, at Dayton, Ohio. He was a pilot.

No children.

m. 2. at San Antonio, Texas. No issue.

3. John Thornburg Peyton

b. March 2, 1897

m. Bertha Mae Ullman, dau.
of James Henry and Catherine
Woodrum Ullman of Callettsburg,
Kentucky.

Two children:

1. Thornburg Arthur Peyton
Died in infancy, at
Tampa, Florida.

2. John Thomas Peyton.

b. Feb. 6, 1923.

m. Joan White

One son

John Thomas Peyton Jr.

b. May 10, 1949.

4. Col. Robert Edwin Peyton

b. Dec. 24, 1901

m. June 1932, Ruth Austin,
b.

Children:

1. Ruth Margaret Peyton

b. Oct. 19, 1933.

Single. A student,
at William and Mary
College, Williamsburg, Va.

2. Mary Peyton

Student at William
and Mary College.

(I wrote these girls at
Williamsburg, and their
father, at San Antonio,
but received no reply to
either letter.)

Cabell County.
Census of 1850

965 - John Turley 65 Farmer \$800
Sarah 50 C. Va

Jonathan 25 Sawyer
Isaiah 20 Farmer

Joseph 11

Rachel 30

Eliya 21

Sarah 18

Martha 15

Elijah Turley 27
Agnes 24

The Above are all the descend
ants of James Turley that are shown
in the Cabell Co. Census of 1850.
We should have the 1860 and
the 1870 censuses.

(Copy this separately. See book on
Mistakes in Dundas Book

171

p. 79 - Paragraph 2 - There
were earlier settlers here -
Thomas Buffington, Jeremiah
Ward, etc. The Dundases
did not own land to the
Big Sandy River, although
they owned large bounda-
ries around Oua, on
Mud River

Last paragraph - Mud
River gets muddy at almost
every rain. The early settlers
were right.

There is no deed in Cabell
county, or any where else, so
far as I know showing when
the Dundases came to Cabell
County, but they were here
quite early, for Mud River
Baptist Church was established
not later than 1807, but the
first deed to the church was
made by Eliza Dundas, as
stated in a later deed by

(Over)

John, Thomas, and Henry I. Dundas,
in 1821. This deed stated that the
first deed (by Eliza Dundas) was
lost. It was for one acre of ground
and included the burying ground,
still in use, but recently enlarged,
but, I believe, privately owned.

Deed Bk D. page 391. (Dim. Very difficult to read).

April, 1917. Special term.

District of Columbia Court

John Dundas, John Linaraip (?), William Smith and John Long were marchants and partners, under the name and firm of John Dundas & Company, Defts.

Against

William Hepburn and the heirs and executors of John Dundas, Dec'd, Comps.

John Auld, Agent, and Attorney-in-fact, for the Plaintiffs, who was appointed to Superintend the sale of the tract of ~~in~~ land, in the proceedings mentioned, having agreeably to the order of this Court, reported that he has sold the land to James Wilson, at the price of eighteen thousand dollars, that he has received the same as the Agent and Attorney-in-fact, ~~for~~ for the plaintiffs, and that William Hepburn and the representatives of John undas had made a deed to the purchaser for the said tract of land, and it appearing to the Court that the proceedings had been in conformity, to the decree of the Supreme Court, and the order of the Court, are hereby confirmed.

A Copy teste, &c.

Deed Bk D. p. 168.

The Dundases give Power of Attorney to sell lands in Mason County. They seem to have the following lands:

6,000 acres, on Ohio River, at Graham Station, 590, 622-1/4 a. a part of.

I find altogether, twelve grantor deeds by Dundas, et al, to others, in this County, or elsewhere.

Mason County.

In addition tot he above, in Grantor Index, there are the following grantees:

{ Agnes Dundas, et al,
Vs. John Dunlop & Co.
Decree--Deed Bk D. P. 177-1816. 3 deeds.

John Dundas Estate,
Vs. John Dundas, et al.
Decree, Deed Bk D. p. 391.

Dundases in Kanawha County deeds. Grantees.

Deed Bk I.J., p. 255.

April 28, 1836, William H. Dundas, John Dundas, Thomas Dundas and Henry T. Dundas, Eliza Dundas and Sophia M. Peyton, late Sophia M. Dundas, by Henry O. Middleton, their attorney in fact of record, in Kanawha County, for 500.00, deed to Christopher Faber, of Kanawha County, 400 acres, on Pocotalico Creek "by actual survey and artitition," allotted unto William Hepburn and John Dundas, their ancestors, as per Wills of the late Wm. Hepburn and John Dundas, recorded in Fairfax County, Va. This 400 acres is the 1/8th of the whole tract, their being eight devisees, it being the same 400 acres as per deed of partition, Oct. 4, 1790, of record in the Office of the general court, at Richmond, to Wm. Hepburn and John Dundas. Jointly owned by the firm of "Hepburn and Dundas, recorded at Alexandria, "it being the extreme upper part of the original survey of 6,788 acres, patented as aforesaid, and bounded as follows:

Deed Bk I.J. p. 247.

June 24, 1835, Wm. H. Dundas, "Know all Men" that I am entitled to sundry lands in Va. and State of Ohio, by virtue of the last will of William Heburn and John Dundas, of record at Alexandria, do appoint Henry O. Middleton my attorney, &c he of Fredericksburg, Va. over all the lands of Virginia, except those in Cabell County, now "in possession of the heirs and those in Ohio and any other state , he to sell, compromise, &c. and to have one-half of all he may recover, &c. or 1/4th of rents from lands not sold or on which s its were not brought, he to bear all costs.

Recorded April 23, 1835.

Deed Bk I.J., p. 578.

March 2, 1837. James H. and Anna Maria Dundas, of Philadelphia, for \$ deed to

Wm. H. Dundas

Henry T. "

Thomas "

John Dundas,

Sophia M. (Dundas) Peyton

Nancy M. and Newton Keene,

the said James H. Dundas being one of the heirs, &c., of his faith the late John Dundas, dec'd, and by virtue of the two wills above, is entitled to 1/3 undivided interest, in certain lands in the States of Virginia and Ohio, and District of Columbia, in Town of Alexandria, deeds his interest in all said lands, as now, or hereafter entitled to, in law or equity from said wills, deeds, to the said Wm.H. Dundas, Henry T. Dundas, &c., as in above deed.

Deed Bk I.J. p. 575.

March 10, 1837, Deed of Partition between Jacob Walsh of Baltimore Co., &c, by Henry O. Middleton, his att'y in fact, deed to Wm. H. Dundas, &c., and Newton and Nancy M. Keene, &c., of Alexandria, Witnesseth, that Whereas, by deed of partition of Oct. 4, 1792, recorded in the General Court, at Richmond, Va., between James Mercer, heir-at-law of James Mercer, and Andrew Waggoner, second part, and Wm. H. Hepburn and John Dundas and Francis West, third part, of certain land in Pocatalico Creek, Kanawha Co., ----- 6788 acres, granted to Geo. Mercer, Andrew Waggoner, and John West, Jr. by patent of Dec. 1, 1773, and Whereas, under the last will, &c. of John West Jr., the co. patentee of the ~~land~~ said tract of 6788 acres, Francis West, one of the Devisees, of John West, Jr., and one of the parties of said deed under the will of her father, received 1,000 acres and the remaining part of John West, Jr's, portion (400 acres) was vested by the will of said John West, Jr., in the eldest son, Thomas West, in fee, who, by deed of May 8, 1790, recorded at Richmond, &c. conveyed same 400 acres to Wm. Hepburn and John Dundas, as tenants in common with the said Francis West, and Wm. Hepburn, and John Dundas not wishing to bear the expense of Commissioners, agreed that the said tract of 1400 a. be held, by them, should be divided and partitioned between them as follows, &c., allotting to sd Hepburn and Dundas their 400 a. at extreme upper end &c. of the original survey, &c. but as no record has been made of same

Jacob Walsh to hold the 1,000 a.

Deed Bk O. p. 170.

Aug. 21, 1845, James M. Laidley, &c. and _____
Commissioners of delinquent and forfeited lands of Kanawha County,

for , deed to James Dundas and Benj. Keegler, Trustees
of the North American Land Co.

Whereas, the Circuit Superior Court of Law and Chancery,
of Kan. Co., by Act of the General Assembly of March 30, 1837
"concerning Western land titles" &c. and amendatory act of
3/15/1838, &c. did offer for sale, after advertising, &c, to above
as highest bidders, 16,800 a. estimated, in the Counties of Kan-
awha and Greenbrier, on dividing ridge bet. Little Kanawha and
Big Kanawha and Elk Rivers, granted by Commonwealth of Virginia
3/17/1788, to Albert Gallatin and Savery De Vancoulen, and which
became delinquent for non-payment of taxes in the name of Thomas
Willing, John Nixon, &c, and after various transfers, conveyed in
trust to the North American Land Company, all of which is recorded
in above Court Records, Reports, &c.

Names mentioned:

Big Sandy Creek, of Elk River

West Fork of Little Kanawha, Pocatalico Creek for
\$2097.90 deed to above, &c.

Above are all the deeds recorded in Kan. Co. to the Dundases.